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VISION & MISSION
STATEMENTS

We aim to be a leading producer and 
supplier of quality sugar by adopting 
the most technological advancement.  
We intend to play a pivotal role in the 
economic development of Pakistan.

OUR MISSION

We shall build on our core competencies and 
achieve excellence in performance to become a 
leading producer of best quality sugar.  In doing 
so we aim to meet or accede the expectations of 
all our stakeholders.	

Our goal is not only to attain technological 
advancements in the field of sugar but also to 
inculcate the most efficient, ethical and time 
tested business practices in our management.	

Furthermore, we shall strive to innovate the ways 
for the improvement and increase in per acre yield 
of sugarcane and introduce improved varieties of 
sugarcane having better yield characters, high 
sucrose contents, disease and drought resistant 
and better ratooning crop in the region.  We shall 
introduce the mechanized sugarcane cultivation 
mehtod to the growers and to educate regarding 
latest developments of agriculture technology 
and free consultancy of professionals.

OUR VISION
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Our corporate strategy and objectives for the future 
are to find new and improved means of cost reduction, 
fuel economy and to acquire advanced manufacturing 
capabilities to support our product development 
efforts and product line expansion and stand ready to 
leverage our debt and be responsive to the changing 
economic scenario.  We believe in harnessing the 
inherent strengths of available human resource 
and materials to the utmost and a commitment for 
building a solid foundation poised for sustainable 
growth for the long-term benefit of our shareholders 
and employees.

	 Strive for excellence and build on our core 
competencies.

	 Keep up with technological advancements in 
our biological control laboratory and extend 
the Research & Development Programme to 
control sugarcane crop diseases.

	 Inculcate efficient, ethical and time tested 
business practices in our management.

	 Work as a team and support each other.

	 Put the interest of the company before that of 
the individuals.

CORPORATE 
STRATEGY

CORE 
VALUES
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Notice is hereby given that 46th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited will be 
held on Tuesday, January 28, 2025 at 15:00 Hours at Registered Office, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore and via video link/Zoom 
application, to transact following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To Confirm minutes of the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited held on 27-01-2024 as 
submitted to PSX.

2.	 To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30th September 
2024 together with Auditor’s and Board of Directors’ reports thereon. 

3.	 To appoint Auditors of the Company for the next financial year 30th September, 2024-25 and to fix their remuneration. 
Present Auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants, retired and being eligible, offer themselves for 
reappointment as Auditors of the Company.

4.	 To elect nine (09) Directors as fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of section 159 of the 
Companies Act 2017 for the next term of three years commencing on January 28, 2025. Names of the retiring Directors 
are; (1) Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan, (2) Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan, (3) Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan, (4) Mr. Nauman 
Ahmed Khan, (5) Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan, (6) Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmed, (7) Mr. Manzoor Hussain Hamayoon. All the retiring 
directors are eligible for re-election.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.	 To consider and approve the transactions carried out with related parties in normal course of business and if appropriate 
to pass the following resolutions as special resolutions with or without modification.

a)	 “RESOLVED that transactions carried out by the Company in the normal course of business with related parties for the 
period ended September 30, 2024 be and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed”

	 Names (s)	 Nature of Transactions	 Amount (PKR)

	 Naubahar Bottling Company (Pvt.) Limited	 Sale of Sugar	 841,905,596
			  Paid/recived/adjustment(net)	 841,905,596

	 The Thal Industries Corporation Limited	 Sale - store items	 15,004,742
			  Purchase - other items	 330,000
			  Paid/ received/adjustment (net)	 14,674,742

	 Almoiz Industries Limited	 Sale of scrap	 28,145,252
			  Sale of store items	 2,860,025
			  Paid/received/adjustment (net)	 22,220,873
			  Purchase – steel items	 8,784,404

b)	 “FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer of the Company or his nominee be and is hereby authorized to 
approve all the transactions to be carried out in the normal course of business with related parties till the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company and in this connection the Chief Executive Officer of the Company or his nominee 
be and is hereby authorized to take any and all necessary actions and sign/execute any and all such documents/
indentures as may be required in this regards on behalf of the Company”

6.	  	To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

			  	 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Lahore:	   MUHAMMAD IMRAN
December 24, 2024	   Company Secretary

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING 
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NOTES:

1.	 Closure of Shares Transfer Books:

	 Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 21-01-2025 to 28-01-2025 (both days 
inclusive). No transfer of shares will be accepted for registration during the closed period. However, transfer 
received at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar Office at M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 
1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore, Telephone No. 042-35916719, Email address: corplink786@gmail.
com by the close of business hours (05:00 PM) on 20th January, 2025 will be considered in time to be 
eligible for the purpose of attending and voting at 46th AGM of the Company.

2.	 Appointment of Proxy:

	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another member as proxy to attend 
and vote instead of him/her. The instrument appointing a proxy must be received at the Registered Office 
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for AGM.

 
3.	 Online Arrangements for AGM

	 Online Arrangements for AGM: The Company has made both physical and online arrangements while 
also ensuring compliance with quorum and other legal / regulatory requirements of general meetings. 
Shareholders of the Company are encouraged to participate in AGM electronically through video link /
Zoom Application and further encouraged to consolidate their attendance through proxies

	 (a)	 Online Participation in AGM vis Zoom application: 

		  The shareholders may login and participate in the proceedings of AGM through their own smart 
phones/computers from their own convenient locations after completing all formalities as required for 
verification and identification of shareholders to attend the AGM electronically, the Login facility will be 
opened about half hour before start of AGM

	 (b)	 The shareholders of BFSML, who wish to attend the AGM electronically through video link, are 
requested to register their following particulars by sending an e-mail at info@bfsml.com by or before 
the close of business hours (05:00 p.m) on 26-01-2025.

Folio /CDC 
account 

No.

No. of 
Shares 

held

Name of 
Shareholder

Father’s/
Husband’s 

Name

CNIC
No.

Cell Phone 
No. with 

WhatsApp

Active 
email 

address

	 The video link and/or login credentials will be shared with the shareholders whose e-mail, containing all 
the requested particulars, are received at the given e-mail address by or before the date/time specified 
above. For any query regarding procedure/requirements of online participation in AGM, the members may 
please contact on the above cited e-mail address or at +92 42 35771066-71 during business hours.

     (c)	 Online Submission of Comments / Suggestions: 
		  The shareholders are also encouraged to send their comments / suggestions in writing, related to the 

proposed agenda items of the AGM by sending an email at info@bfsml.com by the close of business 
hours (5:00 p.m.) on 27-01-2025.

4.	 Verification and Identification of Participants at AGM:
 	 Each online participant shall authenticate his/her identity at AGM by enabling clear camera of his/her 

computer device / mobile etc. for verification and identification purposes.



8

  (a)	 For Attending the Meeting (i) In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder 
whose registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity 
by submitting online scan/photo of his/her original CNIC/Passport along with Participant ID & Account 
number at the time of login to the video link/Zoom application for attending online AGM. (ii) In case of 
corporate entity, scan/photo of the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of 
the nominee shall be submitted online (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of login to the 
video link/Zoom application for attending online AGM. 

  (b)	 For Appointing Proxies (i) In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder, whose 
registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit scan/photo of the proxy form 
as per above requirements. (ii) The proxy form shall be (i) duly stamped with adhesive revenue tickets 
of PKR 50/- and (ii) witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the proxy form. (iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the Passport of beneficial owners and of the 
proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. (iv) The proxy shall submit scan/photo of his original CNIC 
or Passport at the time of login to the video link/Zoom application for attending online AGM. (v) In case 
of corporate entity, scan/photo of the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 
thereon shall be submitted online (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the 
Company at the time of login to the video link/Zoom application for attending online AGM.

5.	 Correspondence by Shareholders: 

	 The shareholders must identify themselves by quoting their respective Folio/ CDS Account numbers in all 
correspondence with the Company and/or with Share Registrar of the Company for any purpose including 
but not limited to the Online Participation in AGM, Comments & Suggestions on proposed agenda items 
in AGM / Transfers & Transmissions of shares, and Changes/Updates in CNIC/NICOP/Passport # IBAN/ 
Correspondence Address / Email Address / Mobile Phone # etc.

6.	 Video Conferencing Facility:

	 If the Company receives consent from members holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing 
in geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the 
date of AGM, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such 
facility in that city.
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	 In this regard, please fill the following and submit to registered address of the company at least 7 days prior 
to the date of AGM.

	 “I/We, ______________________ of __________________, being a member of the Baba Farid Sugar Mills 
Limited, holder of _______________ ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account/Sub Account 
No. _____________________ hereby opt for video conference facility at ______________.

7.	 Placement of Notice & Proxy Forms and Financial Statements on the Company’s Website:

	 The Company has placed the Notice of AGM along with Form of Proxy in English & Urdu languages 
and the Audited Financial Statements for last completed financial year ended September 30 along with 
Auditor’s and Directors’ Reports thereon on the Company’s website: www.bfsml.com and at PUCARS 
website of PSX.

8.	 Transmission of Audited Financial Statements & Notices of General Meetings; 

	 Audited financial statements of the Company are being sent to shareholders through printing of QR Enabled 
Code and Weblink on the printed notice of AGM which is being sent/dispatched to all shareholders through 
post/courier. Soft copies of any or all the documents and information of the Company including audited 
financial statements and notices of general meeting are also being sent electronically through emails to 
shareholders whose email addresses are available with the Company, however, the Company shall provide 
hard copies of Audited Financial Statements and notices of general meetings to its shareholders, on their 
written request, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request.

9.	 For Election of Directors:

	 Any member who seeks to contest election of Directors shall file with the Company at its registered office 
at 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore not later than fourteen days before the AGM the Notice of his/her intention to 
contest election of directors along with other documents and information as detailed in the Statement of 
Material Facts U/S 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 annexed to the printed version of this notice;

10.	 Voting on Special Businesses:

	 In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, as amended, entitled shareholders of 
the Company are being allowed to exercise their right to Vote through Electronic Voting and Voting by Post 
on Special Businesses of the notice of AGM, in the manner and subject to the conditions contained in the 
aforesaid regulations;

11.	 Voting on Election of Director and the Special Businesses:

 	 Entitled shareholders of the Company are being allowed to exercise their right to Vote through Electronic 
Voting and Voting by Post on Election of Directors and the Special Businesses of the notice of AGM, in the 
manner and subject to the conditions contained in the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018;

	 (a)	 Procedure for Electronic Voting:
	  	 M/s. Corplink (Pvt) Limited/Share Registrar of the Company/E-Voting Service Provider for the 

Company) has been appointed as e-voting Service Provider of the Company for Special Businesses to 
be conducted in AGM; (i) Details of electronic voting (including website address, Login and Password) 
shall be provided to entitled shareholders of the Company through their email addresses as available 
with the Company, whereas security codes will be communicated to the shareholders through SMS 
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on their mobile phone numbers as available with the Company from the web portal of Corplink; (ii) 
Identities of shareholders shall be authenticated through electronic signatures/authentication for 
login; (iii) E-voting lines will open at 9:00 hours on January 24, 2025 and close at 17:00 hours on January 
27, 2025. No subsequent change will be allowed once the vote is cast during this period.

	 (b)	 Procedure for Voting by Post: 
		  Shareholders may complete and sign the Ballot Paper and send the same along with the copy of valid 

and legible copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) either through scan & email or via 
courier/post to the address as mentioned on the Ballot Paper till January 27, 2025. The signature on 
the ballot paper must match with signature on CNIC.

12.	 Conversion of Physical Share Certificates into Book Entry Form:
	
	 As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 all existing companies are required to convert their physical 

shares into book-entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the date of commencement of 
the Companies Act. 2017. The Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its circular 
No. CSD/ED/Misc. /2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021, has advised the listed companies to pursue their 
such members who still hold shares in physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form.

	 We hereby requested all such members of BFSML who are holding shares in physical form to convert 
their shares into book-entry form at the earliest. They are also suggested to contact the Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited or any active member/stockbroker of the Pakistan Stock Exchange to open 
an account in the CDC to facilitate the conversion of physical shares into book-entry form.

	 Shareholders may contact Share Registrar of the Company (M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited) to understand 
the process of conversion of physical shares into the book entry form and benefits of holding book entry 
shares.

13.	 MANDATORY INFORMAION – (EMAIL, CNIC, IBAN AND ZAKAT DICLARATION)

	 In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 Companies (General 
Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 members are requested to immediately provide their mandatory 
information such as CNIC number, updated mailing address, email, contact mobile/telephone number and 
International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy of their CNIC to update our records 
and to avoid any non-compliance of the law, otherwise all dividends will be withheld in terms of Regulation 
6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017. 

	 Member are requested to submit a declaration (CZ-50) as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance 1980 for zakat 
exemption shall be submitted to Broker/CDC (in case of CDS shareholder) and to the Company’s Share 
Registrar (in case of physical shareholder), then his/her zakat status in the dividend entitlement register may 
be found as Muslim Zakat Payable, and the Company will be constrained to make compulsory deductions 
of Zakat @ 2.5% of face value of each share from the gross amounts of his/her cash dividends.
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This Statement sets out Material Facts U/S 166 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the Election of 
Directors to be conducted at 46th AGM of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited which is to be held on Tuesday 
28th January 2025 at 15:00 Hours at the Registered Office, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore and via video link / Zoom 
application.

Agenda Item No. 4: Election of Directors:
(i)	 In terms of section 153(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Board of directors, at its meeting held on 

24.12.2024 has fixed the number of directors for next election at nine (09) which are to be elected at AGM 
for a period of three years.

(ii)	 Independent directors, as required on the Board in terms of Rule 6(1) of the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“CCGR-2019”), shall be elected through the process of election 
of directors in terms of section 159 of the Companies Act-2017.

(iii)	 Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of Rule 7A of CCGR-2019, the Election of Directors may be 
held separately for the following categories:

Sr. No. Categories No. of Seats
1. Female Director 3
2. Independent Directors 3
3. Other Directors 3

(iv)	 In order to safeguard the interest of the minority shareholders, any member can send his/her nomination 
for contesting the election in any of above-mentioned categories.

(v)	 Any member who seeks to contest election of Directors shall file with the Company at its registered office 
at 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore not later than fourteen days before the AGM the documents and information as 
detailed below;

(a)	 duly signed Notice of his / her Intention to offer himself / herself for election of directors in terms of 
section 159(3) of CA-2017, and in case of Independent and Female categories, with due selection of 
any one of these categories in which he/she intends to contest for the election of director along with 
his/her Profile; 

(b)	 Duly signed Consent to act as Director under section 167(1) of CA-2017 read with rule 7A(8) of CCGR-
2019 on Form 9 as prescribed under Companies Act-2017 and Companies Regulations, 2024 (“CR-
2024”);

(c)	 Copy of his/her Valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC); 

(d)	 Duly signed separate declarations in respect of (a) being compliant with requirements of CCGR-2019, 
awareness of duties, powers and responsibilities under CA-2017), CCGR-2019, Rulebook of Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Ltd., Securities Act, 2015, Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company 
and other relevant laws and regulations; (b) eligibility criteria as set out in CA-2017, to act as director 
of a listed company; (c) Independent Director category, a duly signed Declaration of Independence in 
terms of section 166(2) of CA-2017, as required under CCGR-2019; e. Proof of holding of 2500 BFSML 

STATEMENT U/S 166 (3) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2017
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shares as Qualification Shares, if not already provided and any other important and relevant information. 
f. Details of holding of other offices & directorships in other companies including details of Global 
Beneficial Ownership(s) and details of Ultimate Beneficial Ownership(s); g. For physical and electronic 
correspondence, Complete Office & Residential Addresses, Active personal email address and valid 
cell phone number registered on his/her CNIC.

(vi)	 Any notices received for the category of Independent and Female Directors, shall be subject to due diligence 
by the Company as prescribed under Section 166 of CA-2017 and Rule 7Aof CCGR-2019;

(vii)	 Final list of candidates contesting the Election of Directors in all categories will be circulated not later than 
seven (7) days before the date of the AGM in terms of Section 159(4) of Companies Act-2017 and Rule 
7A(10) of CCGR-2019 along with the update of company’s website www.bfsml.com accordingly.

(viii)	 Justifications for choosing Independent Directors; a. Independent Directors shall have sufficient knowledge, 
skills and expertise to play effective roles as independent directors. b. At least two of the Independent 
Directors shall be required to chair Board’s committees such as Chairman of Board’s Audit Committee and 
Board’s Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. c. Independent Directors shall be willing to attend 
Directors Training Program from SECP’s approved institutions within one year from the date of election. 
d. Names of Independent Directors must have been registered in the Data Bank maintained by Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) along with their written consents. e. Independent Directors must 
be eligible in terms of criteria of independence as mentioned in section 166(2) of the CA-2017, and must 
be willing to act as Independent Directors on the Board of listed company as required under the provisions 
of section 166(1) of CA-2017. f. None of circumstances, as mentioned under proviso (b) to subsection 2 of 
section 166 of CA-2017, shall exist in relation to Independent Directors. (ix) The directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives shall not be interested, directly or indirectly, in the selection of Independent 
Directors except to the extent of shares that are held by them in the Company

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS
UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special businesses to be transacted at the 46th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited to be held on Tuesday January 28, 2025 at 15:00 Hours 
at Registered office at 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore, and through electronically video link/Zoom application.

STATEMENT U/S 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

The transactions with associated company were carried out during the year, therefore, these transactions have 
been placed before the shareholders of the Company for their approval.

a)	Agenda Item No. 5 of Notice of AGM: Ratification and Approval of Related Party Transactions: (Associated 
Companies)

The Company is and shall be conducting all transactions of sales and purchase of goods with Naubahar Bottling 
Company (Pvt.) Limited, The Thal Industries Corporation Limited and Almoiz Industries Limited (Associated 
undertaking of the Company) for the period commencing from October 1st, 2023 to period ends September 30, 
2024 in the normal course of business. The prices, terms and conditions agreed between the companies are based 
on Arm Length Basis under Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company. The directors of the company have 
no interest whatsoever both directly or indirectly except for common directorship. Record consisting of details of 
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all the transactions along with all supporting documents is maintained as per legal requirements and available in 
the registered office of the company.

Nature and amount of transactions along with applicable pricing policy are detailed below:

Names(s) Nature of Transactions Amount (PKR) Pricing Policy
Naubahar 
Bottling 
Company (Pvt.) 
Limited

Sale of Sugar 
Paid/received/adjustment (net)

841,905,596
841,905,596

As per approved contract between 
BFSML & NBC, Related Party 
Transactions Policy and approval of 
shareholders in AGM.

The Thal 
Industries 
Corporation 
Limited

Sale - store items
Purchase - other items
Paid/ received/adjustment (net)

15,004,742
330,000

14,674,742

As per approved contract between 
BFSML & TICL Related Party 
Transactions Policy and approval of the 
shareholders in AGM.

Almoiz 
Industries 
Limited

Sale of scrap
Sale of store items
Paid/received/adjustment (net)
Purchase – steel items

28,145,252
2,860,025

22,220,873
8,784,404

As per approved contract between 
BFSML & AIL, Related Party Transactions 
Policy and approval of shareholders in 
AGM.

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorship in the Associated 
undertakings. The following were the common directors in Baba Farid Sugar Mills Ltd with the Almoiz Industries 
Ltd, The Thal Industries Corporation Ltd and Naubahar Bottling Company (Pvt.) Ltd and respectively: (i) Mr. 
Muhammad Shamim Khan (ii) Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan (iii) Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 (iv) Mr. Nauman Ahmed 
Khan (v) Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan.

The Company shall continue to carry out transactions with the related parties in the ordinary course of business 
till next the Annual General Meeting. The nature and scop of such related party transactions are explained above 
in the statement of relevant agenda item. Therefore, such transactions with related parties have to be approved 
by the shareholders. The shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive or his nominee to approve such 
transactions till the next Annual General Meeting.

b)	 Authorization for the Board of Directors to approval related party transactions during the financial 
year ended Sep. 30, 2024

	 The Company is and shall be conducting transactions of sale and purchase of goods with NBC, TICL & AIL 
during the financial year ending Sep. 30, 2024 and subsequently, in the ordinary course of business and at 
Arm’s Length Basis as per the approved policy with respect to transactions with related parties in the normal 
course of business, and therefore, all the future transactions with NBC, TICL & AIL shall be approved by the 
Board of Directors on quarterly basis. Considering the interests/concerns of five out of seven Directors due 
to their common directorship and /or relationship with Directors of NBC, TICL & AIL, the related parties’ 
transactions of the fiscal year 2024 are suggested to be placed before the shareholders.

	 Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is being sought to authorized Board of Directors of the Company 
to approve all transactions carry out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business till next the 
Annual General Meeting. The nature and scope of such related party transactions are explained above in the 
statement of relevant agenda item.  Therefore, such transactions with related parties have to be approved 
by the shareholders. The shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive or his nominee to approve such 
transactions till the next Annual General Meeting for their formal approval/rectification.

	 There is no specific interest of the directors in these special resolutions, except that mentioned above.
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Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited
	  Registered office, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore. (www.bfsml.com)

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: 
qaiser.shamim@nbcpepsi.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders
Registered Address
Number of shares held and folio number
CNIC Number (copy to be attached)
Additional Information and enclosures (In case of 
representative of body corporate, corporation and 
Federal Government.)

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/
our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (√) mark in the appropriate box below (delete as 
appropriate);

Sr. 
No

Nature and Description of resolutions No. of 
ordinary 

shares for 
which votes 

cast

I/We assent 
to the 

Resolutions 
(FOR)

I/We 
dissent 
to the 

Resolutions 
(AGAINST)

1. Special Resolution under Agenda No.5 of Notice of AGM

“RESOLVED that transactions carried out by the Company 
in the normal course of business with related parties for 
the period ended September 30, 2024 be and are hereby 
ratified, approved and confirmed”

Names(s) Nature of Transactions Transac-
tions 

during the 
period

Amount 
(PKR)

Naubahar 
Bottling 
Company 
(Pvt.) 
Limited

Sale of Sugar 
Paid/received/adjustment (net)

841,905,596
841,905,596

The Thal 
Industries 
Corporation 
Limited

Sale - store items
Purchase - other items
Paid/ received/adjustment (net)

15,004,742
330,000

14,674,742

Almoiz 
Industries 
Limited

Sale of scrap
Sale of store items
Paid/received/adjustment (net)
Purchase – steel items

28,145,252
2,860,025

22,220,873
8,784,404

Ballot paper for voting through post for poll to be held at Annual General Meeting on 15:00 hours January 28, 
2025 at Registered office 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore.

BALLOT PAPER
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“FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company or his nominee be and is hereby authorized to 
approve all the transactions to be carried out in the normal 
course of business with related parties till the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company and in this connection 
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company or his nominee 
be and is hereby authorized to take any and all necessary 
actions and sign/execute any and all such documents/
indentures as may be required in this regards on behalf of 
the Company”

Signature of shareholder(s)__________________________ Place:__________________ Date: ___________

NOTES:
1. 	Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to chairperson of BFSML Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, 

Lahore, Pakistan. (email: qaiser.shamim@nbcpepsi.com) 

2. 	Copy of CNIC should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. 	Postal ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting on or before January 27, 2025. Any postal ballot 
received after this date, will not be considered for voting.

4. 	Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC. 

5.	 Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected.
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I am pleased to present this report to the shareholders of Baba 
Farid Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) for a year that has been 
marked by both challenges and opportunities. Our organization 
has navigated through a dynamic environment, where global 
market fluctuations, regulatory changes, and weather patterns 
had a significant impact on the industry. However, despite these 
headwinds, we continue to demonstrate resilience and are well-
positioned for sustainable growth.

The global sugar market has seen several shifts over the past 
year. Prices have been influenced by factors such as changing 
crop yields in key producing regions, international trade policies, 
and growing demand for sugar-based products.

Domestically, our sugar sector faced its own set of challenges, 
including fluctuating sugarcane yields, climate uncertainty, and 
increasing production costs. Despite these challenges, we have 
been able to leverage our strong market presence and efficient 
operational practices to maintain a competitive edge.

The agriculture sector has shown a growth of 6.25 percent in 
2023-24 compared to 2.27 percent last year, driven by healthy 
growth in important crops. Specifically, there was a significant 
growth of 16.82 percent in the production of major Crops, but 
the sugarcane production declined by 0.4 percent. Sugarcane 
production was at 87.6 million tonnes compared to last year’s 
88.0 million tonnes.

Industrial Sector grew by 1.21 percent in FY 2024 compared to 
contraction of 3.74 percent last year. The sub-sector large-scale 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REVIEW
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manufacturing (LSM), representing domestic industrial 
production, has been consistently recovering

The year 2024 was also very challenging one for the 
overall economy. Pakistan’s economy began to show 
signs of resilience and stability after facing significant 
challenges during FY 2023. The economy was hit 
by international supply shocks and domestic natural 
disasters (floods) in FY 2023. These events increased 
the country’s vulnerabilities as it was recovering from 
the pandemic, leading to a negative GDP growth rate. 
GDP growth was on rise, while inflation continued to 
trend downward in later part of this year. These positive 
developments were attributed to the government’s 
resilient policy management and renewed support 
from both multilateral and bilateral partners. Despite 
the challenges, the government successfully 
completed the IMF Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) 
program. Looking ahead, the government anticipates a 
new 3-year IMF program to support the external sector 
further and encourage investment flows, aiming to 
steer the economy toward its potential growth. Amid 
these positive developments, GDP growth reached 
2.38 percent in FY 2024.

We believe in steadily improving the governance 
framework of the Company. For this purpose, a formal 
and effective mechanism in place for evaluation of 
the Board. Therefore, as required under the Code of 
Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the 
Board of the Company was carried out. The purpose 
was to ensure and measure the Board’s overall 
performance and effectiveness and benchmarking 
against expectations in the context of objectives set 
for the Company. The Board made arrangements 
for orientation of Directors to acquaint them with the 
Rules, Regulations & Laws issued by the Regulatory 
Authorities to enable them to effectively govern 
the affairs of the Company for and on behalf of the 
shareholders.

The Board met the duties as required under the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate 
Governance, applicable to the Company which include 
approval of significant policies, establishing a sound 
system of internal controls, approval of budgets and 
financial results, along with approval of significant 
investments. The Audit Committee and the Human 
Resource & Remuneration Committee were chaired by 
the independent director, indicating our commitment 

to the highest levels of governance and transparency. 
The Audit Committee has continued to supervise the 
financial reporting processes and ensuring timely 
and accurate communication of information to all 
stakeholders.

The Board ensures that reasonable time is available 
for discussion on the agenda during Board Meetings. 
All written notices, including the agenda, supporting 
documents and other working papers of meetings 
were circulated with-in a reasonable time prior to 
the meetings. Further, the Board has a fiduciary 
responsibility for the proper direction and control of the 
activities of the Company. This responsibility includes 
such areas of stewardship as the identification and 
control of the Company’s business risks, the integrity 
of management information systems and transparent 
reporting to shareholders. The Company continues 
to deal with the current challenging business 
environment and strategic changes to improve the 
future sustainability. The Board is fully responsive and 
actively guided the Management. I am confident that 
the Management will successfully device necessary 
adjustments in the Company’s operations, financial 
management and growth strategy. Looking ahead, 
the Company aims to further enhance its competitive 
position by expanding allowable manufacturing 
capabilities, strengthening research and development 
by leveraging its expertise. The Board and 
management are focused on creating enduring value 
for all stakeholders through improved operational 
efficiencies, cost controls, portfolio diversification and 
leveraging strong customer relationships.

I would like to place on record, my sincere appreciation 
for devotion of duty, loyalty and hard work of the 
executives, officers, staff members and workers for 
smooth running of the Company’s affairs and hope that 
they will continue for enhancement of productivity with 
great zeal and spirit under the blessings of Almighty 
Allah. We also thank all the Government functionaries, 
banking and non-banking financial institutions, 
suppliers and shareholders for their continued support 
and cooperation for the betterment and prosperity of 
the Company.

			
		
Lahore: 	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan	
24 December, 2024	 Chairperson
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (BOD), we 
are pleased to present the Annual Report of 
Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited (BFSML) for the 
year ended September 30th, 2024 along with 
the audited financial statements and Auditors’ 
Report thereon.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT REVIEW

FY24 began with high inflationary pressure, 
tight monetary measures and fiscal pressures. 
Hence, financial year under review happened 
to be another year of economic challenges and 
uncertainties.. GDP growth remained at about 
2.4% whereas large scale manufacturing also 
witnessed a marginal rise reflecting the subdued 
economic activity across the board.

Persistent high levels of inflation and interest 
rates throughout the year continued to impact 
the cost of doing business while simultaneously 
eroding purchasing power of consumers thus 
suppressing the overall demand. 

However, some improvements were witnessed 
towards the end of the year when economy 
was judged to have left the worst behind it and 
gradually to be on its way out of an economic 
crisis. The import and currency restrictions that 

rippled businesses at large have now eased off.

Industry Review

Pakistan has a diversified economic base with 
the agriculture sector, contributing 24 percent 
in GDP and 37.4 percent in employment. The 
predominance of agriculture in the economy 
indicates that agricultural growth is a critical 
driver of economic growth, employment, and 
poverty reduction, given its linkages with the 
other sectors.

Sugarcane is the fourth largest and second most 
important cash crop of  Pakistan. It provides 
valuable by-product (sugarcane tops) as fodder 
for livestock during winter. Being tropical crop 
sugarcane needs sunshine, water and heat; 
therefore, in Pakistan it is cultivated mainly in 
Punjab, Sindh and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. It 
provides raw material to the 2nd largest agro-
based sugar industry. It provides directly and/or 
indirectly employment to millions of rural farming 
and non-farming community. 

This year the sugarcane posted negative growth 
of 0.39 percent , with a production of  87.64 
million tonnes against 87.98 million tonnes last 
year.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS
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For crushing season 2023-24, the Punjab government set the minimum support price (MSP) for sugarcane at 
400 rupees per 40 kg, which is a 33% increase from the previous year which was Rs. 300 per 40 kg. The Sindh 
government set the MSP at 425 rupees per 40 kg.

The average sugarcane cost to the Company about 49% higher than that of last year. 
 
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s sugar production increased to 16.45% due to availability of sugarcane in the area and 
better yield per acre and due to better sugarcane varieties cultivation. The Company was able to obtain 
the recovery of 10.068% as compared to last year of 9.956%. Evident improvement in the Company’s 
sugar results is mainly due to the endeavors of management and staff, improved production efficiencies, 
better relationship with Growers and other stakeholders and experience of the management. The 
Company’s Operating and Financial performance is also elaborated below:

Operating Performance

The summarized operating performance of your Company for the year 2023-24 compared to last year 
is presented as follows:

Description 2023-24 2022-23
Sugar Cane Crushed (MT) 524,174.100 455,913.605 
Sugar Produced (MT)     52,798.400     45,338.900 
Sugar Recovery (%) 10.068 9.956
Molasses Produced (MT) 22,345.000 19,288.935 
Plant Operational Days 101 97

Financial Performance

The summarized financial performance of your Company for the year 2023-24 compared to last year is 
presented as follows:

Description 2023-24 2022-23
(Rupees in Million)

Net Sales 5,840.322 4,543.139
Cost of Sales  (5,580.519)  (3,992.397)
Gross Profit 259.802       550.742
Other Income 139.729 174.259
Other expenses & taxes       (1,022.898)     (688.921)
Net (Loss) / Profit (623.366) 36.083
(Loss) /  Earning  Per Share (65.96)        3.82
Gross Profit  Ratio 0.04      0.12
P/E Ratio            (0.74)          7.59
Market Price Per Share (30-09-2024) 48.65 28.99

The main reasons for loss incurred this year are high cane cost, exceptionally high finance cost and suppressed 
sugar prices.
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(LOSS) / EARNING PER SHARE

The loss per share of the company for the year under 
review stood at Rs. 65.96 (2023: Earning  per share Rs. 
3.82).

RISK MITIGATION

The Board of Directors, Board’s Audit Committee 
and Risk Management Committee are responsible 
for oversight of Company’s operations and to evolve 
proactive strategies to mitigate any potential adverse 
impact of major risks. 

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital 
base to maintain investors, creditors, and market 
confidence and to safeguard its ability to continue as 
a going concern. The Company manages its capital 
structure and makes appropriate adjustments to move 
with economic changes and the risks associated 
with safeguarding its asset base. Your Company’s 
management believes in maintaining an appropriate 
debt-equity ratio and optimal mix of long and short-
term debts.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Agricultural R&D is an integral part of the Company’s 
policy which entails identification and multiplication 
of promising new sugarcane varieties and their 
subsequent commercial sowing through progressive 
growers with best agricultural practices. This will 
not only increase per acre yield of sugar cane but 
also enhances the grower’s earning and creates 
more enthusiasm for sowing sugarcane compared 
to competing crops. It also increases the sugarcane 
supply to the Company and directly improving the 
bottom line of the Company.

The Company has invested in research and 
development initiatives, focusing on the cane breeds 
improvement, and the development of energy crops, 
production technologies and machinery to sustain its 
growth momentum.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND 
EMPLYEE RELATION

Human Resources are the most vital asset of your 
Company to maintain its sustainability as they are 
the source of Knowledge, Skills, and Competence. 
The vision of human resources has been determined 
based on the core value defined by the Company’s 
Management. Your Company believes that effective 

utilization of competitive human resources is most 
important to survive in an ever-changing business 
environment and to achieve sustainable growth. 

Your Company gives utmost importance to the ongoing 
development of its human resource for smooth 
operations. The Company uses a combination of on-job 
training and enhanced skill programs through subject 
specialists to promote the effective development of 
human resources.

RELATIONSHIP WITH GROWERS

The Company enjoys cordial relationship with the 
farmer’s community as it considers the growers to 
be its backbone. To maintain and further strengthen 
the relationship, the Company as a matter of principle 
gives priority and endeavors to; 

-	 Consistently follow the policy of timely payments 
of sugarcane to growers. 

-	 Fulfill farmers’ financial requirements by providing 
them assistance in the form of agri inputs. 

-	 Enhance technical skills through various advisory 
programs. 

-	 Provide better quality varieties of sugarcane 
resulting in increased productivity in sugarcane 
yield per acre and for better sugar recovery.

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND GOING CONCERN 
ASSUMPTION 

During the last couple of months, Pakistan’s 
economic outlook has started showing some signs of 
improvement. One of the key positive indicator is a sharp 
decline in inflation which after peaking in the previous 
fiscal year has dropped to a single digit. Consequently, 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has taken the bold step to 
reduce the policy rate in successive monetary policy 
meetings. There is a probability of further decrease in 
discount rates in the coming months which will bode 
well for the industry. 

Pakistan reached at an agreement with IMF, that has 
opened the doors for further inflows from other lenders 
eventually strengthening the foreign reserves. However, 
Pakistan’s economic rebound is contingent on broad 
structural reforms, including revenue mobilization, 
fiscal consolidation, and improved governance. In 
the expected economic and political environment, 
the management maintains a positive outlook on the 
Company’s prospects of moving forward. The company 
remains committed in delivering enduring value and 
strengthening relationships with existing customers & 
suppliers to materialize its growth aspirations. 
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The Crushing season 2024-25 has started.. This 
year there is no cane price regulation by the 
Provincial Governments. The sugarcane situation in 
the procurement area of the Company has slightly 
improved due to higher acreage and also the Company 
is expected to have reasonable recovery.. Considering 
non regulated sugarcane prices , and the lowered SBP 
policy rates, Company expects to have better results 
subject to free sugar prices. 

The government must ensure the price of sugar is 
reflective of the price of sugarcane and other costs 
in line with prevailing inflation to create a conducive 
business environment for the industry as well as 
develop policies to promote agriculture by providing 
seeds to farmers those are better in yield and recovery.
 
These financial statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis, based on the sponsors’ 
commitment to provide financial and operational 
support to the Company. The management has no 
doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has always strived to play its due role 
in the society and fulfill its responsibility towards the 
people and environment. In line with its corporate social 
responsibility policies, the Company has endeavored 
to improve the overall conditions of the people living 
around the manufacturing plant and the surrounding 
areas. 

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

Your Company   implemented strict protocols on health 
and employee safety. In this regard, the Company 
follows applicable laws and regulations. Personal 
protection equipment is provided to all staff. 

The Management of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited 
(BFSML) believes that protection of environment is 
important for survival of every person and as such 
the Company attaches utmost importance to provide 
healthy atmosphere to its employees and to the society 
at large. Your company continued to be conscious of 
its social responsibility and the management has 
taken appropriate measures to achieve environmental 
standards.

CUSTOMER FOCUS

The Company believes that its valued customers are 
the foundation of its business success. The Company 
policies are fully customer focused by putting them 
at the center of its business decision-making. The 

Company is following a long-term strategy that 
develops loyalty and builds trust. Close liaison with 
the market and customers has always enabled your 
Company to best understand customers’ needs to 
offer the best suitable products and service levels to 
make your Company the first choice.

MATERIAL CHANGES

No material changes and commitments affecting 
the financial position of the company were observed 
between the end of financial year of the company to 
which the financial statements relate and the date of 
the report.

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The company is exposed to the following risks and 
uncertainties:

•	 Increased competition among the mills due to 
lesser availability of sugarcane crop in the area

•	 Higher prices of sugarcane and packing material
•	 Market disruption due to change in Govt. policies 

regarding sale of sugar (Specially in export)
•	 Foreign currency fluctuation
•	 Higher SBP Policy rates

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has fully complied with requirements of 
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. A Statement of Compliance is 
provided under the relevant section of the report.

Following are the Statements on Corporate and 
Financial Reporting Framework:

•	 The financial statements prepared by the 
management of the Company present its state of 
affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows 
and changes in equity.

•	 Proper books of accounts of the Company have 
been maintained.

•	 Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based 
on reasonable and prudent judgment.

•	 International Financial Reporting Standards, 
as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 
in preparation of financial statements and any 
departure, if any, therefrom has been adequately 
disclosed and explained.

•	 The system of internal controls is sound in design 
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and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
•	 There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
•	 There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance.
•	 Key operating and financial data for last six (6) years in summarized form is annexed.
•	 Statement of Shareholding pattern along with categories of shareholding of the company is annexed in the 

report. 
•	 There is nothing outstanding against your Company on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges except 

for those which are being made in normal course of business and appropriately disclosed in the financial 
statements.

Board of Directors 

The total number of Directors on the Board is 7 and its composition is as follows:

•    Male Directors                5
•    Female Directors            2

Category	 Names

Independent Directors	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad
			  Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon

Executive Directors	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan (CEO)
			  Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan

Non-Executive Directors	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
			  Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan
			  Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan

During the year 4 Board meetings were held. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and 
circulated. Attendance of such meetings was as under:

Name of Directors	 Designation	 No. of Meeting
		  Attended 

Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan	 Chair Person	 3
Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 Chief Executive	 3
Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan	 Director	 4
Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan	 Director	 3
Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan	 Director	 4
Mr. Farid Ud Din Ahmed	 Independent Director	 4
Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon	 Independent Director	 4

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of three members including Chairman of the Committee 
as mentioned below. The committee regularly meets as per requirement of the code. The committee assists the 
Board in reviewing internal audit manual and internal audit system.
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	 For and on behalf of Board
	  Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited

	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
	 Chief Executive Officer	 Chairperson

Lahore:  24th December, 2024

i)	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad (Chairman); and 
ii)	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon
iii)	 Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan;

HR and Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted a Human Resource 
Committee consisting of three members including 
Chairman of the committee as mentioned below, in 
compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.

i)	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad (Chairman); and
ii)	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon.
iii)	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan;

Nomination Committee

The Board has constituted a Nomination Committee 
consisting of two members including Chairman of the 
committee as mentioned below, in compliance with 
the Code of Corporate Governance.

i)	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon. 
(Chairman)

ii)	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad

Risk Management Committee

The Board has constituted a Risk Management 
Committee consisting of two members including 
Chairman of the committee in compliance with the 
Code of Corporate Governance.	

i)	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon. 
(Chairman)

ii)	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Directors are aware of their responsibility with 
respect to internal controls and they confirm that 
adequate controls have been implemented by the 
Company.
 
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the relevant regulations, your 
Company has devised a Related Party Transactions 

Policy approved by the Board of Directors which governs 
how arm’s length and non-arm’s length transactions 
are dealt with. All related party transactions carried 
out during the year are disclosed in the financial 
statements. Transactions with related parties are 
based at arm’s length, that normal commercial rates on 
the same terms and conditions as applicable to third 
party transaction

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company’s contribution to the National Exchequer 
for the year ended September 30, 2024 was Rs. 878 
Million as compared to Rs. 773 million for the last year. 

AUDITORS

The present Auditors M/s BDO Ebrahim & Company, 
Chartered Accountants, are the retiring auditors of 
the Company and have offered their services for re-
appointment. They confirmed that they have been given 
a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review 
Program of The Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with 
the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics, as adopted by ICAP.  On 
the recommendation of the Board’s Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors proposed their re-appointment 
by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, as auditors of the Company for the year 
ending September 30, 2025, at a fee to be mutually 
agreed upon.
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employees and are appreciative of their dedication and 
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with the Company and  	
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SIX YEARS SUMMARY OF 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
OPERATING PERFORMANCE:						    
						    
	 2024	 2023	 2022	 2021	 2020	 2019	  	
	 	 Restated	 Restated

Sugar Production:									       

Cane crushed	 (M.Tons)	  524,174.100 	  455,913.605 	  604,762.396 	 457,224.825 	  290,029.359 	  26,976.308 

Average sucrose recovery	 (%)	  10.068 	  9.956 	  8.936 	 9.072	  8.70 	  5.58 

Sugar produced	 (M.Tons)	  52,798.400 	  45,338.900 	  54,026.500 	  41,501.500 	  25,159.000 	  1,935.600 
							     

Operating period	 Days	  101 	  97 	  132 	 116	  115 	  22 

							     
Operating results:							     

 Sales	 (000’Rs.)	  5,840,322 	  4,543,139 	  3,938,712 	  3,864,161 	  1,783,548 	  121,607 		

Cost of sales	 (000’Rs.)	  5,580,519 	  3,992,397 	  3,990,959 	  3,613,466 	  1,754,710 	  478,699 

Gross profit/ (Loss)	 (000’Rs.)	  259,802 	  550,742 	  (52,247)	  250,695 	  28,838 	  (357,092)

 Gross Profit / (Loss) to Net Sales	 (Ratio)	  0.04 	  0.12 	  (0.01)	  0.06 	  0.02 	  (2.94)

Net (Loss) / Profit before Taxation/ Levy	 (000’Rs.)	  (550,271)	  92,586 	  (167,659)	  166,421 	  (276,941)	  (627,625)

Net (Loss) / Profit after  Taxation/ Levy	  (000’Rs.)	  (623,367)	  36,083 	  (242,297)	  122,219 	  (286,079)	  (682,625)

Net (Loss) / Profit to Net Sales	 (Ratio)	  (0.107)	  0.008 	  (0.06)	  0.03 	  (0.16)	  (5.61)

Shareholders’ Equity:							     

Paid up capital	 (000’Rs.)	  94,500 	  94,500 	  94,500 	  94,500 	  94,500 	  94,500 

Reserves & surplus	 (000’Rs.)	  2,494,980 	  3,121,527 	  3,086,363 	  1,698,942 	  1,256,871 	  771,630 

Shareholders’ equity	 (000’Rs.)	  2,589,480 	  3,216,027 	  3,180,863 	  1,793,442 	  1,351,371 	  866,130 

(Loss) / Earning Per Share	 Rupees	  (65.96)	  3.82 	  (25.64)	  12.93 	  (30.27)	  (72.24)

P/E Ratio	 Rupees	  (0.74)	  7.59 	  (1.48)	  4.07 	  (1.21)	  (0.68)

							     

Market Price Per Share	 Rupees	  48.65 	  28.99 	  37.90 	 52.63	 36.57	  49.25 

Financial position:							     

Current assets	 (000’Rs.)	  2,764,592 	  1,398,640 	  1,151,069 	  536,024 	  897,653 	  296,437 

Fixed capital expenditure	 (000’Rs.)	  3,453,739 	  3,513,912 	  3,569,816 	  2,943,193 	  2,830,740 	  2,822,993 

Total assets	 (000’Rs.)	  6,218,961 	  4,913,078 	  4,722,747 	  3,480,553 	  3,728,568 	  3,119,430 

Current liabilities	 (000’Rs.)	  3,248,033 	  1,207,164 	  1,202,357 	  1,003,023 	  1,100,007 	  900,442 

Long term debts	 (000’Rs.)	  356,166 	  472,184 	  327,985 	  306,792 	  901,016 	  965,960 

 Total liabilities	 (000’Rs.)	  3,629,481 	  1,697,051 	  1,541,884 	  1,687,111 	  2,377,197 	  2,253,300 

Current ratio	 (%)	  0.85 	  1.16 	  0.96 	  0.53 	  0.82 	  0.33 

Debt equity ratio	 (%)	  1.40 	  0.53 	  0.48 	  0.94 	  1.76 	  2.60   
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  1.	 Incorporation Number 	 0006535	
			 
  2.	 Name of the Company       	BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED	
			 
  2.1	Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 	              30/09/2024

  2.2	 Number of	                                                 Shareholdings		  Total
	 Shareholders	           From	 To	 Shares Held

	 630	 1	 100	 15,323
	 378	 101	 500	 69,566
	 33	 501	 1,000	 25,736
	 36	 1,001	 5,000	 89,321
	 3	 5,001	 10,000	 19,999
	 1	 10,001	 15,000	 10,500
	 1	 35,001	 40,000	 37,668
	 3	 910,001	 915,000	 2,734,635
	 2	 975,001	 980,000	 1,956,942
	 1	 1,115,001	 1,120,000	 1,115,049
	 1	 1,640,001	 1,645,000	 1,640,784
	 1	 1,730,001	 1,735,000	 1,734,477

	 1,090			   9,450,000	
	
2.3	 Categories of shareholders	 Shares Held	  Percentage 

2.3.1  	 Directors, Chief Executive Officer,	 9,183,987	 97.1850%
         	 and their spouse and minor children			 
			 
2.3.2  	 Associated Companies,	 0	 0.0000%
         	 undertakings and related			 
         	 parties. (Parent Company)			 
			 
2.3.3  	 NIT and ICP	 1,000	 0.0106%
			 
2.3.4 	  Banks Development	 100	 0.0011%
         	 Financial Institutions, Non			 
         	 Banking Financial Institutions.			 
			 
2.3.5  	 Insurance Companies	 0	 0.0000%
			 
2.3.6  	 Modarabas and Mutual	 0	 0.0000%
         	 Funds			 
			 
2.3.7  	 Shareholders holding 10%	 9,181,887	 97.1628%
         	 or more			 
			 
2.3.8  	 General Public		
	 a. Local	 247,490	 2.6189%
	 b. Foreign	 5	 0.0001%
			 
2.3.9 	 Others (to be specified)			 
	 -  Joint Stock Companies	 17,418	 0.1843%

FORM-34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(SECTION 227(2)(F)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
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S. No.    NAME		  HOLDING	 %AGE
				  
DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN	
		
1	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 1,640,784	 17.3628
	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN 	 1,115,049	 11.7995
2	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN	 1,734,477	 18.3543
3	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN	 978,471	 10.3542
4	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN	 978,471	 10.3542
5	 MALIK MANZOOR HUSSAIN HUMAYUN	 1,600	 0.0169
6	 MR. FARID UL DIN AHMED	 200	 0.0021
7	 MRS. SARAH HAJRAH KHAN	 300	 0.0032

		  9,183,987	 97.1850	

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
		  0	 0.0000
NIT & ICP			 
1	 M/S INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKSTAN	 1,000	 0.0106
		
		  1,000	 0.0106
BANKS, DEVELOPMENTS, FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,			 
NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
			 
1	 M/S FIDELITY INVESTMENT BANK LTD.	 100	 0.0011

		  100	 0.0011
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
			 
1	 SALIM SOZER SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)	 6,055	 0.0641
2	 AKIK CAPITAL (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)	 7,337	 0.0776
3	 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LTD.(CDC)	 25	 0.0003
4	 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED (CDC)	 1	 0.0000
5	 SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (PRIVATE) LTD. (CDC)	 500	 0.0053
6	 SCANDIA LIMITED (CDC)	 3,500	 0.0370

		  17,418	 0.1843	
	

SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN)		  5	 0.0001
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL)		  247,490	 2.6189

			   247,495	 2.6190	

	                                                                                           TOTAL:	 9,450,000	 100.0000

CATEGORIES OF 
SHARE HOLDERS
As on 30th September 2024
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S. No.    NAME		  HOLDING	 %AGE

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL
			 
1	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 2,755,833	 29.1623
2	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 2,646,022	 28.0002
3	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 1,890,016	 20.0002
4	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 1,890,016	 20.0002

		  9,181,887	 97.1628
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL			 

1	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 2,755,833	 29.1623
2	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 2,646,022	 28.0002
3	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 1,890,016	 20.0002
4	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 1,890,016	 20.0002

		  9,181,887	 97.1628	

During the financial year the trading in shares of the company by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary		
and their spouses and minor children is as follows		
				  
S. No.   NAME		  SALE	 PURCHASE

	                                                         NIL
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NAME OF THE COMPANY:		 BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
YEAR ENDED:			   SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
(“the Regulations”) in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

	 a.	 Male: 05
	 b.	 Female: 02

2.	 The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board”) is as follows:

	 Category	 Names
	 Independent Directors	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad
		  Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon	
	 Non-Executive Director	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
		  Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan
		  Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan	
	 Executive Directors	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan (CEO)
		  Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan	
	 Female Directors	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
		  Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan

	 Determination of number of independent Directors comes to 2.33 (rounded to 2.0) which is based on seven elected 
Directors. The Fraction of one-third is not rounded up, as the two elected independent directors have requisite 
competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and execute their duties competently, as per applicable 
laws and regulations. As they fulfill the necessary requirements as per applicable laws and regulations, hence, 
appointment of a third independent director is not warranted.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 
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3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including 
this Company;

4.	 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate 
it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their date of 
approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board 
/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these regulations;

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recordings and circulating minutes of meeting of the board.

8.	 The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance 
with the Act and these Regulations;

9.	 The following Directors have attained Directors Training program certification:

	 Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan
	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad
	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon 

	 Remaining four directors are exempted from such training as they have fourteen years of education and fifteen years 
of experience on the board of the listed company

10.	 The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of 
the Regulations. 

11.	 Chief Financial Officer and chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12.	 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

Names Designation held
Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmad Chairman/ Independent
Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan Member / Non-Executive
Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon Member / Independent 

	 HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Names Designation held
Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmad Chairman/ Independent
Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan Member / Executive (CEO)
Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon Member / Independent

	 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Names Designation held
Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon Chairman / Independent
Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmad Member / Independent



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 47

	 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Names Designation held
Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon Chairman/ Independent
Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmad Member/ Independent

	
13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 

compliance;

14.	 The frequency of meetings (quarterly/ half yearly/ yearly) of the committees held during the financial year ended 30th 
September 2023 were as per following:

Names Number of Meetings Held
Audit Committee 6
HR and Remuneration Committee 1
Risk Management Committee 1
Nomination Committee 1

15.	 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the 
purpose and are conversant with policies and procedures of the Company;

16.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality 
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight 
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with international federation of accountant (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by Institute of chartered accountants of Pakistan and that they and partners 
of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative ( spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the 
chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except 
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed 
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.	 We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 have been complied with, expect for an 
independent director as explained above in note 2.

19.	 Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

Sr. 
No. Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 

Number

1

Role of the Board and its members to address 
Sustainability Risks and Opportunities The board 
is responsible for governance and oversight of 
sustainability risks and opportunities within the 
Company by setting the Company’s sustainability 
strategies, priorities and targets to create long 
term corporate value.

During the year, SECP introduced 
new regulation 10A in the Regulations 
on 12 June 2024. Currently, the 
management is assessing this 
amendment and compliance thereof, 
as applicable, will be performed in 
due course of time.

10(A)

	 For and on behalf of Board
	  Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited

	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
	 Chief Executive Officer	 Chairperson

         December 24, 2024
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Baba Farid Sugar Mills 
Limited for the year ended September 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the 
Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance 
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review 
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required 
to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form 
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and 
risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related 
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Further we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement of the regulations as reflected in 
the paragraph reference where it is stated in the statement of Compliance:

Paragraph Reference				    Description

I	 02        Independent directors’ fraction is not rounded up as “One”.
II	 19       Role of the Board and its members to address Sustainability Risks and Opportunities.

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Sajjad Hussain Gill
UDIN: CR202410087XRnucCpAb
Lahore: January 06, 2025

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REVIEW REPORT
To the Members of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited  
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
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Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements of BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, and we state 
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s 
affairs as at September 30, 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Following are the key audit matters:

Sr.No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Contingencies

As disclosed in note 35.1 to the financial 
statements, the Company is involved in certain 
legal and tax proceedings against the Company. 
The appeals were filed by the Company against 
these orders at respective forums. 

Management judgement is involved in 
assessing the accounting for claims, and in 
particular in considering the probability of a 
claim being successful and we have accordingly 
designated this as a focus area of the audit. The 
risk related to the claims is mainly associated 
with the completeness of the disclosure, and the 
completeness of the provisions in the financial 
statements.

No provision has been made in the financial 
statements for the liability that may arise in the 
event of a decision against the Company as the 
management is of the opinion, based on advice 
of legal and tax advisor that the decision is likely 
to be in the favor of the Company.  

There are significant uncertainties attached to 
the future outcome of these pending matters 
and, therefore, are considered as key audit 
matters. 

We undertook number of procedures to verify the 
appropriateness of contingencies in the financial 
statements. Our audit procedures included the 
following: 

•	 Obtained understanding of the Company’s 
processes and controls over litigations through 
meetings with the management and review of 
the minutes of the Board of Directors and Board 
Audit Committee.

•	
•	 Reviewed the correspondence of the Company 

with the relevant authorities and the Company’s 
legal advisors including the judgments or orders 
passed by the competent authorities.

•	
•	 Obtained and reviewed direct confirmations 

from the Company’s external legal advisors for 
their views on the legal position of the Company 
in relation to the contingent matters.

•	
•	 Discussed open matters and developments 

with the in-house legal department personnel 
of the Company.

•	
•	 Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in 

respect of these contingencies in accordance 
with the applicable accounting and reporting 
standards. 
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2. Revenue recognition
The company principally generates revenue 
from sale of sugar and its by-products. Revenue 
has been recognized as per the accounting 
policy stated in note 7.22 to the financial 
statements.  

We have identified revenue recognition as a key 
audit matter as it is one of the key performance 
indicators of the Company and gives rise to an 
inherent risk of material misstatement to meet 
expectations or targets.

Our audit procedures in respect of revenue 
recognition, amongst others, included the 
following:

•	 Obtained an understanding of the process 
relating to recording of revenue and testing 
the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of relevant key internal controls 
over recording of revenue.

•	 Assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s 
accounting policy for recording of revenue and 
compliance of the policy with International 
Financial Reporting Standard – Revenue from 
contracts with customers (IFRS 15).

•	 Reviewed a sample of contractual arrangements 
entered into by the Company with its customers 
and checking the performance obligations 
involved, transaction price and recognition of 
revenue based on satisfaction of performance 
obligation.

•	 Compared a sample of sale transactions 
recorded during the year with sales orders, 
sales invoices, delivery notes and other relevant 
underlying documents.

•	 Compared a sample of sale transactions 
recorded before and after the year end with 
relevant underlying documentation to assess 
whether revenue has been recorded in the 
correct accounting period.

•	 Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in 
the financial statements to be in accordance 
with the applicable accounting and reporting 
standard.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion 
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 
2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation..

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017);

b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the 
books of account and returns;

c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and

d)	 no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sajjad Hussain Gill. 

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR202410087clFfr0Cy1
LAHORE: January 06, 2025	
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	 Note	 2024	 2023	 2022
		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
ASSETS			   (Restated)	 (Restated)	 	
NON CURRENT ASSETS			 
Property, plant and equipment				  
Operating fixed assets	 9 	  3,427,348,441 	  3,492,165,517 	  3,550,648,365 
Right-of-use assets	 10 	  13,838,540 	  20,090,211 	  14,848,919 
Capital work in progress	 11 	  12,552,659 	  1,656,275 	  4,318,237 
			    3,453,739,640 	  3,513,912,003 	  3,569,815,521 
Long term deposits	 12 	  630,184 	  525,400 	  1,862,450 
			    3,454,369,824 	  3,514,437,403 	  3,571,677,971 
CURRENT ASSETS				  
Stores, spare parts and loose tools	 13 	  207,803,822 	  189,945,202 	  142,233,291 
Stock in trade	 14 	  1,942,632,882 	  726,722,121 	  535,560,190 
Trade debts	 15 	  3,362,467 	  -   	  8,258,625 
Short term investment	 16 	  306,400 	  -   	  -   
Loans and advances	 17 	  446,928,134 	  317,295,182 	  186,693,990 
Short term deposits and prepayments	 18 	  798,285 	  2,597,585 	  1,698,307 
Other receivables	 19 	  5,722,999 	  8,327,829 	  9,373,703 
Taxation / levy - net	 20 	  73,247,717 	  36,941,661 	  41,719,765 
Cash and bank 	 21 	  83,789,198 	  116,810,909 	  225,531,346 
			    2,764,591,904 	  1,398,640,489 	  1,151,069,217 
TOTAL ASSETS		   6,218,961,728 	  4,913,077,892 	  4,722,747,188 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES				  
Authorized share capital	 22.1	  700,000,000 	  700,000,000 	  700,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital	 22.2	  94,500,000 	  94,500,000 	  94,500,000 
Reserves				  
Revenue reserves - accumulated losses		   (3,024,992,840)	  (2,452,520,079)	  (2,545,950,284)
Directors’ loans	 23 	  3,002,700,000 	  3,002,700,000 	  3,002,700,000 
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets	 24 	  2,517,273,104 	  2,571,346,693 	  2,629,613,660 
			    2,589,480,264 	  3,216,026,614 	  3,180,863,376 
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES				  
Long term loan 	 25 	  139,544,750 	  194,971,400 	  321,629,268 
Long term diminishing musharka	 26 	  210,000,000 	  270,000,000 	  -   
Lease liabilities	 27 	  6,621,610 	  7,213,053 	  6,355,958 
Deferred liabilities	 28 	  25,281,610 	  17,703,025 	  11,541,454 
			    381,447,970 	  489,887,478 	  339,526,680 
CURRENT LIABILITIES				  
Trade and other payables	 29 	  197,369,356 	  213,111,524 	  189,828,824 
Contract liabilities	 30 	  241,776,008 	  408,485,470 	  73,494,312 
Unclaimed dividend		   255,930 	  255,930 	  255,930 
Due to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited	 31 	  9,007,275 	  15,552,242 	  16,656,242 
Short term borrowings	 32 	  2,059,050,720 	  100,000,000 	  440,005,920 
Mark-up accrued	 33 	  416,221,001 	  305,335,771 	  298,446,922 
Current portion of long term liabilities	 34 	  324,353,204 	  164,422,863 	  183,668,982 
			    3,248,033,494 	  1,207,163,800 	  1,202,357,132 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   6,218,961,728 	  4,913,077,892 	  4,722,747,188 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 35 
The annexed notes from 1 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.	
	
			 

	CHIEFE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As At 30 September 2024
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
					     (Restated)   

Revenue from contracts with customers	 36 	  5,840,321,922 	  4,543,139,222 

Cost of sales	 37 	  (5,580,519,459)	  (3,992,396,801)

Gross profit		   259,802,463 	  550,742,421 

Selling and distribution expenses	 38 	  (29,978,859)	  (37,312,887)

General and administrative expenses	 39 	  (160,614,922)	  (135,939,736)

Other operating expense	 40 	  (1,676,202)	  (108,730,149)

Other income	 41 	  139,729,726 	  174,259,392

		   (52,540,257)	  (107,723,380)

Operating profit		   207,262,206 	  443,019,041

Financial charges	 42 	  (757,533,689)	  (350,433,374)

(Loss) / profit before taxation and levy		   (550,271,483)	  92,585,667

Levy	 43 	  (73,144,097)	  (56,448,158)

(Loss) / profit before income tax		   (623,415,580)	  36,137,509 

Taxation	 44 	  49,047 	  (54,761)

(Loss) / profit for the year		   (623,366,533)	  36,082,748 		

	

(Loss) / Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 	 46 	  (65.96)	 3.82 		

	

The annexed notes from 1 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

	CHIEFE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

STATEMENT OF 
PROFIT OR LOSS 
For the year ended 30 September 2024



56

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
					     (Restated)   

(Loss) / profit for the year	  	  (623,366,533)	   36,082,748  
Other comprehensive income				  
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 				  
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 	 28.2.4	   (3,179,817)	  (919,510)
Related tax effect		  -	  -   
		    (3,179,817)	  (919,510)
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets		   - 	  -   
Related tax effect		   -	  -   

		   - 	  -   

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year		    (626,546,350)	  35,163,238  		
	

The annexed notes from 1 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2024

	CHIEFE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
					     (Restated)   

Cash flows from operating activities			 
(Loss) / profit before taxation and levy		   (550,271,483)	  92,585,667 
Adjustments for non-cash items :			 
Depreciation	 9.8 and 10	  112,223,892 	  114,086,983 
Provision for gratuity	 28.2.4	  14,771,634 	  7,586,305 
Gain on sale of fixed assets	 41 	  (98,214)	  (8,381,455)
Liabilities written back	 41 	  -   	  (17,891,973)
Financial charges	 42 	  757,533,689 	  350,433,374 

Net cash flow before working capital changes		   334,159,518 	  538,418,901 
	
Decrease / (increase) in current assets			 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools		   (17,858,620)	  (47,711,911)
Stock in trade		   (1,215,910,761)	  (191,161,931)
Trade debts		   (3,362,467)	  8,258,625 
Loans and advances		   (129,632,952)	  (130,601,192)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments		   1,799,300 	  (899,278)
Other receivables		   2,604,830 	  1,045,874 
			    (1,362,360,670)	  (361,069,813)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities			 
   Trade and other payables		   (182,451,630)	  376,165,831 
			    (1,210,652,782)	  553,514,919 
Taxes paid		   (109,401,106)	  (51,724,815)
Payment against staff retirement -  gratuity	 28.2.5	  (10,372,866)	  (2,344,244)
Financial charges paid		   (646,648,459)	  (343,544,525)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities		   (1,977,075,213)	  155,901,335 
			 
Cash flows from investing activities			 
Additions in operating fixed assets	 9 	  (27,446,828)	  (58,077,999)
Additions in capital work in progress	 11.1	  (21,271,071)	  2,661,962 
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets		   740,984 	  15,059,452 
Short term investment		   (306,400)	  -   
Long term deposits		   (104,784)	  1,337,050 

Net cash used in investing activities		   (48,388,099)	  (39,019,535)
			 
Cash flows from financing activities			 
Loan obtained / (repaid) to banking companies		   73,342,132 	  (173,762,182)
Long term diminishing musharakah (repaid) / obtained		   (30,000,000)	  300,000,000 
(Paid) / adjusted to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited		   (6,544,967)	  (1,104,000)
Principal repayment of lease liability 		   (3,406,284)	  (10,730,135)
Short term borrowings - net		   1,959,050,720 	  (340,005,920)
Net cash generated / (used in) from financing activities		   1,992,441,601 	  (225,602,237)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		   (33,021,711)	  (108,720,437)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   116,810,909 	  225,531,346 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   83,789,198 	  116,810,909

The annexed notes from 1 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 September 2024

	CHIEFE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up 

capital
Surplus on 

revaluation of 
fixed assets

Directors’ 
loans

Revenue 
Reserves Total

Ordinary 
shares

Accumulated 
losses

 -----------------------------( Rupees)-----------------------------
		

Balance as at October 01, 2022 as previously reported		   94,500,000 	  2,371,408,110 	  3,002,700,000 	  (2,696,855,317)	  2,771,752,793 
Effect of restatement on adoption of IAS-12/37
and IFRIC 21	 8 	  -   	  258,205,550 	  -   	  150,905,033 	  409,110,583 

Balance as at October 01, 2022 - restated		   94,500,000 	  2,629,613,660 	  3,002,700,000 	  (2,545,950,284)	  3,180,863,376 
						    
Total comprehensive income for the year 						    
Profit for the year 		   -   	  -   	  -   	  36,082,748 	  36,082,748 
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (919,510)	  (919,510)
Incremental depreciation on revaluation surplus		   -   	  (58,266,967)	  -   	  58,266,967 	  -   
		   -   	  (58,266,967)	  -   	  93,430,205 	  35,163,238 
Balance as at September 30, 2023		   94,500,000 	  2,571,346,693 	  3,002,700,000 	  (2,452,520,079)	  3,216,026,614 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
						    
Loss for the year 		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (623,366,533)	  (623,366,533)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (3,179,817)	  (3,179,817)
Incremental depreciation on revaluation surplus		   -   	  (54,073,589)	  -   	  54,073,589 	  -   
		   -   	  (54,073,589)	  -   	  (572,472,761)	  (626,546,350)
Balance as at September 30, 2024		   94,500,000 	  2,517,273,104 	  3,002,700,000 	  (3,024,992,840)	  2,589,480,264 		
				  

The annexed notes from 1 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2024          

	CHIEFE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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1.	 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

	 Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in 1978 under the repealed Companies 
Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a Public Limited Company and its shares are quoted at Pakistan 
Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged  in the manufacturing and sale of sugar  including its by-products 
i.e. molasses, Filter cake and bagasse.

2.	 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

	 The registered office of the Company is situated at 2-D/1, Gulberg III, Lahore. The manufacturing facility of 
the Company is located at 5 KM Faisalabad Road, District Okara, Punjab.		

3.	 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

	 The Company has accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 3,024.993 million as at September 30, 2024, 
however, the Company has positive equity as the sponsors have provided financial support in the form 
of an interest-free loan amounting to Rs. 3,002.700 million, payable at the discretion of the Company. The 
management expects improved gross margins and profitability in future years due to non-regulation of 
sugar cane price and decrease in interest rates, therefore, the management considers that the going 
concern assumption used to prepare these financial statements is appropriate. 

4.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

4.1 	 Statement of compliance

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of :			 
				  

	 -	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017 (the Act); 		

	 -	 Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan as notified under Companies Act, 2017; and

	 -	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

	 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.		
		

4.2	 Basis of measurement

	 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition 
of certain staff retirement benefits at present value and as modified for fair value adjustment in certain fixed 
assets and exchange differences.

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards requires 
management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that effect the application of policies 
and reported amounts, of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and 
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively 
commencing from the period of revision.

	 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments 
to the financial statements in subsequent years are disclosed in note 7.				  
	

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2024
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4.3	 Functional and presentation currency
	
	 These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency 

for the Company.					   
	

5.	 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED 
APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS		

5.1	 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended 
September 30, 2024

	 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended September 
30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company’s 
operations or did not have significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional 
disclosures.		

Effective date (annual 
periods beginning 

on or after)
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS 
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of 
Accounting Policies January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ - Deferred Tax related to 
Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ - Temporary exception to the 
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to 
pillar two income taxes

January 01, 2023

	
	 The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (lAS) 1, 

Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accounting policy 
themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements. 

	 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The 
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, 
assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to 
understand other information in the financial statements.

	 Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in note 7 
Material accounting policies (2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the 
amendments and concluded that all its accounting policies are material for disclosure.

5.2	 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

	 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, 
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and 
interpretations are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant 
impact on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional  disclosures.			 
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Effective date (annual 

periods beginning 
on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ -  Supplier 
finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ -  Amendments 
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ -  Amendments regarding 
the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification 
of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Non-current 
liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ - Supplier finance 
arrangements

January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ 
- Lack of Exchangeability

January 01, 2025

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026

	 IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ has been issued by IASB 
effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

	 IFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements’ has been issued by IASB effective from 
January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

	 IFRS 19 ‘Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’ has been issued by IASB effective from 
January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

	 IFRS 17 - ‘Insurance contracts’ has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which 
will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

6.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS	
		
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in 

Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise 
its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are 
continually evaluated and are based on the historical experience, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and 
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements are disclosed in relevant notes.
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7.	 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION	

	 The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

7.1 	 Property, plant and equipment	

a)	 Owned assets	

	 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except 
for freehold land, buildings on freehold land, and plant and machinery which are carried at revalued amount 
and capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost less impairment losses.  

	 Depreciation is charged on all fixed assets by applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified 
in note 9. The rates are determined to allocate the cost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not 
insignificant, over its useful life.				  

	 Depreciation on assets is charged from the month of addition while no depreciation is charged for the 
month in which assets are disposed off.				  

	 Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of fixed assets is recognised, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity and value of fixed 
assets. If an assets’ carrying amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the increase will be recognized 
in other comprehensive income. 				  

	 However, the increase shall be recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease 
of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss. If an assets’ carrying amount is decreased as a 
result of revaluation, the decrease shall be recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be 
recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 
surplus in respect of that assets.

	 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred while cost of major 
replacements and improvements, if any, are capitalized.					   
				  

	 Gains and losses on disposal and retirement of an asset are included in the statement of profit or loss.		

	 Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets

	 Surplus arising on revaluation is credited to surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. This 
surplus on revaluation, to the extent of incremental depreciation is transferred to accumulated profit, net of 
deferred tax.

b)	 Capital work in progress

	 Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, and consists of expenditure 
incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course of their 
construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant 
operating fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use intended by the management.	

c)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of financial 
position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the 
assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

	 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds 
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates 
cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment losses are recognized as 
expense in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
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costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

	 Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each statement of financial position 
date. Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment losses 
had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.		

7.2 	 Leases

	 Right of use assets

	 The right of use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to initially measured lease liability adjusted 
for lease prepayments made at or before the commencement date, initial direct cost incurred less any 
lease incentives received.  				  

	 The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using reducing balance method from the date of 
recognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The 
estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and 
equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and 
adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability.				  

	 Lease liability

	 The lease liability was measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future lease payments 
over the lease term, discounted with the specific incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently lease liabilities 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.  

	 Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.  It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the rate, if there 
is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option.				  

	 When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset has been reduced to zero.  				  

	 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

	 The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of its assets 
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases 
that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.			 

	 Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

	 The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods 
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.		

7.3 	 Intangible assets
	
	 Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have 

probable economic benefits beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets. These are stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization is provided on a straight line 
basis over the asset’s estimated useful lives.
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7.4	 Stores, spares and loose tools
	
	 These are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value less impairment, if any, except 

for items in transit, which are valued at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges paid thereon till 
the statement of financial position date. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares 
on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and 
physical form of related stores, spares and loose tools. For items which are slow moving and / or identified 
as surplus to the company’s requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book value over 
estimated realisable value.					   
				  

	 Spares parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant 
and equipment are classified as tangible fixed assets under the plant and machinery category and are 
depreciated on over a time period not exceeding the useful life of related assets.			 
	

7.5	 Stock-in-trade	
		
	 These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:	
		
	 Raw and packing materials	 -	 weighted average cost
	 Raw and packing materials 
	 in transit	 -	 Invoice value plus other expenses incurred thereon
	 Work in process	 -	 Cost of material as above plus proportionate production overheads
	 Finished goods                            -	 Average cost of manufacture/purchase which includes proportionate 		

	     production overheads including duties and taxes paid  thereon, if any.
	 By products	 -	 At net realizable value	
		
	 Adequate provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items.	
		
	 Net realizable value represents the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less 

expenses incidental to make the sale.  	
		
7.6	 Trade debts and other receivables	
		
	 Trade  debts and other receivables are  recognized  and  carried at original invoiced amount which is the 

fair value of the consideration to be received in future for goods sold less provision for doubtful amounts. 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets.  

	 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company is required 
to recognize allowance for doubtful debts on all financial assets carried at amortized cost in accordance 
with  Expected Credit Loss (ECL) requiring to recognize the loss irrespective whether the loss event has 
occurred.  Default or delay in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.	

7.7	 Taxation
	
a)	 Current
	
	 The charge for current year is higher of the amount computed on taxable income at the current rates of 

taxation after taking into account tax credits and rebates, if any, and minimum tax computed at the prescribed 
rate on turnover or alternative corporate tax. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where 
considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during 
the year for such years. 
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b)	 Deferred

	 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method for all temporary differences at the reporting date 
between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 
In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income subject to final tax regime is also 
considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan.				  

	 Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused 
tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such 
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.				  

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the assets are realised or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit 
or loss, except in case of items charged or credited directly to equity in which case it is included in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

c)	 Levy

	 The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current income tax 
expense for the year in the statement of profit or loss. Any excess of expected income tax paid or payable 
for the year under the Ordinance over the amount designated as current income tax for the year, is then 
recognized as a levy.

7.8	 Borrowings

	 Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance cost are accounted for on accrual 
basis and are shown as interest and mark-up accrued to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.		

	 Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.	

	 Borrowing cost on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for the acquisition 
of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged 
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are incurred. Borrowing cost also includes 
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest cost as allowed under IAS 23 “Borrowing cost”.			 

7.9	 Trade and other payables

	 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in the future for goods and services received.

7.10	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporitng date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

7.11	 Operating lease/Ijarah

	 Operating lease/ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor/Muj’ir (lessor) are classified as operating leases/Ijarah. Payments made during the period are 
charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease/Ijarah.	
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	 The SECP has issued directive (vide SRO 431(I)/2007 dated May 22, 2007) that Islamic Financial 
Accounting Standard 2 (IFAS-2) shall be followed in preparation of the financial statements by companies 
while accounting for Ijarah (Lease) transactions as defined by said Standard. The Company has adopted 
the above said standard.					   
	

7.12	 Cash and bank balances
	
	 Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nominal amount.	

7.13	 Cash and cash equivalents
	
	 For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cheques in 

hand and balances with banks net of borrowings not considered as being in the nature of financing activities.
	
7.14	 Dividend and appropriation to reserve
	
	 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s financial 

statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.	

7.15	 Financial instruments
	
7.15.1	Financial assets
	
	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, 

fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The classification depends on the 
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition. All the financial assets of the Company as at statement of financial 
position date are carried at amortized cost.

	 Amortized cost	
		
	 A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not 

designated as at fair value through profit or loss:	
		
	 -	 it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and	

	
	 -	 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
		
	 Debt Instrument - FVOCI	
		
	 A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 

as at FVTPL:	
		
	 -	 it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling financial assets;
	 -	 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
		
	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective 

interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other 
net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are 
reclassified to profit or loss.
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	 Equity Instrument - FVOCI
	
	 On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably 

elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis.

				  
	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss 

unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and 
losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss..

	
	 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
	
	 All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are 

measured at FVTPL.					   
				  

	 On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets 
the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.				  
				  

	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.					   
	

	 Impairment
	
	 The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:	
		
	 -	 financial assets measured at amortized cost;
	 -	 debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
	 -	 contract assets.
		
	 The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs), except for the following, 

which are measured at 12-month ECLs, on financial assets measured at amortized cost and contract 
assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

		
	 -	 debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
	 -	 other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
		
	 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months 

after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).			 
			 

	 Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period 
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

					   
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized cost are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.				  
				  

	 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has 
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.	
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information 
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical  experience and informed credit assessment 
and including forward-looking information.					   
	

	 The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses which uses 
a lifetime expected loss allowance. Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible 
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Management uses actual credit loss 
experience over a past years to base the calculation of ECL.					   
				  

	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and 
debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.			 
	

7.15.2	 Financial liabilities
	
	 All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument.
	
7.15.3	 Recognition and measurement 

	 All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration 
given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair 
value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular measurement methods adopted  are 
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 	

7.15.4	 Derecognition
	
	 The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that 

comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished i.e. 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

	
7.16	 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
	
	 A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the 

Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on 
a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	
7.17	 Foreign currency transactions and translation
	
	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating 

those prevailing on the date of transactions or at the contract rate. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those prevailing at the 
reporting date or at the contract rate. Exchange gains and losses are included in the statement of profit or 
loss currently.

	
7.18	 Employee benefits
	
	 The Company’s employees benefits comprise of gratuity scheme and compensated absences for eligible 

employees.
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7.18.1	Staff retirement benefits
	
	 Defined benefit plan (Gratuity Fund)
	
	 The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who have attained 

retirement age, died or resigned during service period and have served for the minimum qualification 
period. Provision is based on the actuarial valuation of the scheme carried out as at September 30, 2024  
using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with IAS-19 “Employee Benefits” and resulting 
vested portion of past service cost has been charged to income in the current year. The remeasurement 
gains / losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end are recognized immediately in other 
comprehensive income and all other expenses are  recognized in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee 
Benefits” in the statement of profit or loss. 

	
7.18.2	Compensated absences
	
	 The Company accounts for these benefits in the period in which the absences are earned.
	
7.19	 Revenue recognition
	
	 Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue from the 

sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods passes to customers and the customers can direct 
the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the goods.	

	
	 Revenue is recognized when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as 

described below.	
		
	 Revenue from contracts with customers	
		
	 Sale of goods	
		
	 -	 Sale of goods is recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products to the 

customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the 
products.  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the performance 
obligations arising from the contract with a customer is satisfied and the amount of revenue that it 
expects to be entitled can be determined. This usually occurs when control of the asset is transferred 
to the customer, which is when goods are dispatched or delivered to the customer.		

		
	 Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes 

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is disclosed net of returns, rebates, discounts and 
other allowances.

		
	 Contract assets	
		
	 Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a 

customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.
		
	 Contract liabilities	
		
	 Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company 

has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company 
transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are 
recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

		
	 Others	
		
	 -	 Scrap sales are recognized on delivery to customers at realized amounts.
	 -	 Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principle outstanding and 

the applicable rate of return.		
	 -	 All other income is recognized on accrual basis.		
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7.20	 Related party transactions	
		
	 Transactions with related parties are based at arm’s length, that normal commercial rates on the same 

terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.
	
7.21	 Borrowing costs
	
	 Interest charges on long term loans are capitalized for the period up to the date of commencement of 

commercial production of the respective plant and machinery acquired out of the proceeds of such loans. 
All other interest and charges are treated as expenses during the year.	

7.22	 Segment reporting
	
	 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which 

it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions 
with any of the Company’s other components. All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly 
by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. The 
Company has only one reportable segment. 	

7.23	 Contingencies
	
	 A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, 

existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.	

7.24	 Share capital
	
	 Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs, net of tax, directly 

attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.	

7.25	 Earnings per share
	
	 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.	

7.26	 Financial assets - due from Government of Pakistan
	
	 Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan i.e. subsidy on export due from Government. SECP 

through S.R.O. 67 (I)/2023 dated January 20, 2023 has notified that, in respect of companies holding financial 
assets due from the Government of Pakistan in respect of circular debt, the requirements contained in 
IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Losses method shall not be applicable till December 
31, 2024 and that such companies shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred 
financial assets during the exemption period. 
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	 These are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates fair value, and subsequently measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

          
	 A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be 

able to collect all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and 
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The provision 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the 
provision. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement of profit 
or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement 
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss.

	 The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Company’s assessment at the collectability of 
counterparty accounts. The Company regularly reviews its trade debts that remain outstanding past their 
applicable payment terms and establishes allowance and potential write-offs by considering facts such 
as historical experience, credit quality, age of the accounts receivable balances and current economic 
conditions that may affect customers ability to pay.					   
				  

7.27	 Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables				  
	

	 Loans, advances, deposits, prepayment and other receivables are carried at original amount less provision 
made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Balance 
considered irrecoverable are written off.

8.	 RESTATEMENT - ON ADOPTION OF IAS 12 – APPLICATION GUIDANCE ON ACCOUNTING FOR 
MINIMUM AND FINAL TAXES

	 During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical Release 
27 ‘IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the ‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting 
for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance with the Guidance, the 
Company has changed its accounting policy to recognise  minimum and final taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” which were previously being recognised as 
‘Income tax’.

	 The Company has accounted for the effects of these changes in accounting policy retrospectively under 
IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and the corresponding figures 
have been restated in these financial statements.

	 The Company has adopted approach one under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37/IAS 12. During the year, the 
Company incurred a loss before taxation of  Rs. 550.271 million, resulting in accumulated losses amounting 
of Rs. 3,024.993 million as at September 30, 2024. The company had previously recorded a net deferred 
tax liability of Rs. 354.229 million in 2023. Following the adoption of approach one, any previously recorded 
deferred tax would require reassessment, and necessary adjustments would be made through retained 
earnings in accordance with IAS 08 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates, and Errors’.  
Following the above guidance and  management assessment, the Company will remain in minimum tax 
and deductible temporary difference cannot be utilized, the deferred tax liability recorded in prior year has 
been reversed and relevant adjustments has been made in statement of changes in equity.
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	 The summary of effect on prior periods is presented below:

		  As previously	 Restatement	 As restated 
		  reported	
As at September 30, 2022

Effect on statement of financial position :				  
Deferred liabilities	  420,652,037 	  (409,110,583)	  11,541,454 	
“Revenue reserves accumulated losses”	 (2,696,855,317)	  150,905,033 	  (2,545,950,284)	
“Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets”	 2,371,408,110 	  258,205,550 	  2,629,613,660

As at September 30, 2023

Effect on statement of financial position :			 
Deferred liabilities	  371,932,435 	  (354,229,410)	  17,703,025 
“Revenue reserves -  accumulated losses”	  (2,565,441,359)	  112,921,280 	  (2,452,520,079)
“Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets”	  2,330,038,563 	  241,308,130 	  2,571,346,693 

Effect on statement of profit or loss :			 
Income tax - deferred tax	  (54,614,515)	  54,614,515 	  -   

Effect on other comprehensive income :			 
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability related deferred tax	  (266,658)	  266,658 	  -   

Effect on statement of changes in equity :			 

As at September 30, 2023			 
Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earning	  (41,369,547)	  (16,897,420)	  (58,266,967)
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9.	 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS				  

9.1	 The following is the statement of fixed assets;
	

Description

Freehold 
land

Buildings 
on freehold 

land

Plant and 
machinery

Electric 
installation

Tools and 
equipment Vehicles

Furniture 
and 

fixtures                

Office 
and  other 

equipments  

Computer 
and allied 

equipment
Total

(Rupees)				  
Net carrying value basis										       
year ended September 30, 2024										        
Opening net book value (NBV)	  1,728,240,000 	  276,304,880 	  1,427,965,056 	  19,176,568 	  28,923,177 	  2,860,377 	  2,146,318 	  3,938,156 	  2,610,985 	  3,492,165,517 
Additions / transfer (at cost)	  -   	  10,627,646 	  14,185,000 	  6,739,836 	  3,856,658 	  7,545,574 	  865,520 	  74,000 	  786,210 	  44,680,444 
Disposals (NBV)		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (642,770)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (642,770)
Depreciation charge		   -   	  (27,938,442)	  (71,965,357)	  (2,218,970)	  (3,040,119)	  (1,973,321)	  (279,630)	  (398,133)	  (1,040,778)	  (108,854,750)

Closing net book value 		    1,728,240,000 	  258,994,084 	  1,370,184,699 	  23,697,434 	  29,739,716 	  7,789,860 	  2,732,208 	  3,614,023 	  2,356,417 	  3,427,348,441  
										        
Gross carrying value basis										        
year ended September 30, 2024										        
Cost/revalued amount		   1,728,240,000 	  607,169,786 	  2,634,652,950 	  37,960,307 	  40,838,219 	  12,204,313 	  8,982,968 	  16,826,001 	  4,956,779 	  5,091,831,323 
Accumulated depreciation	  -   	  (348,175,702)	  (1,264,468,251)	  (14,262,873)	  (11,098,503)	  (4,414,453)	  (6,250,760)	  (13,211,978)	  (2,600,362)	  (1,664,482,882)

Net book value		   1,728,240,000 	  258,994,084 	  1,370,184,699 	  23,697,434 	  29,739,716 	  7,789,860 	  2,732,208 	  3,614,023 	  2,356,417 	  3,427,348,441	
									       

Net carrying value basis										       
year ended September 30, 2023										        
Opening net book value (NBV)	  1,728,240,000 	  290,689,156 	  1,494,941,821 	  9,988,948 	  18,139,997 	  558,881 	  1,738,922 	  4,216,371 	  2,134,269 	  3,550,648,365 
Additions / Transfer (at cost)	  -   	  15,575,219 	  13,832,101 	  10,332,730 	  13,237,117 	  2,791,082 	  610,827 	  155,877 	  1,543,046 	  58,077,999 
Disposals (NBV)		   -   	  -   	  (5,727,917)	  -   	  -   	  (19,219)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (5,747,136)
Depreciation charge		   -   	  (29,959,495)	  (75,080,949)	  (1,145,110)	  (2,453,937)	  (470,367)	  (203,431)	  (434,092)	  (1,066,330)	  (110,813,711)
	
Closing net book value 		    1,728,240,000 	  276,304,880 	  1,427,965,056 	  19,176,568 	  28,923,177 	  2,860,377 	  2,146,318 	  3,938,156 	  2,610,985 	  3,492,165,517	

									       
Gross carrying value basis										        
year ended September 30, 2023										        
Cost/revalued amount		   1,728,240,000 	  596,542,140 	  2,620,467,950 	  31,220,471 	  36,981,561 	  5,434,843 	  8,117,448 	  16,752,001 	  4,170,569 	  5,047,926,983 
Accumulated depreciation	  -   	  (320,237,260)	  (1,192,502,894)	  (12,043,903)	  (8,058,384)	  (2,574,466)	  (5,971,130)	  (12,813,845)	  (1,559,584)	  (1,555,761,466)

Net book value		    1,728,240,000 	  276,304,880 	  1,427,965,056 	  19,176,568 	  28,923,177 	  2,860,377 	  2,146,318 	  3,938,156 	  2,610,985 	  3,492,165,517  	
								      

Depreciation rate % per annum                                                     -	 10	 5	 10	 10	 20	 10	 10	 33	  
										         										        
9.2	 Free hold land of the Company is located at  5-km Faisalabad Road, District Okara, Punjab with an area 

covering 72.011 acres (2023: 72.011 acres). The building on freehold land and other immovable assets of 
the Company are constructed/located at above mentioned freehold land and address.

	
9.3 	 Plant and machinery and building on free hold land include transfer from capital work-in-progress 

amounting to Rs. 10.375 million (2023: Rs. 8.172 million).
				  
9.4	 Free hold land, buildings on free hold land, and  plant and machinery were revalued by  independent 

valuers  M/s. Harvester Services (Private) Limited as at September 30, 2022  on the basis of market value. 
The revaluation resulted in surplus aggregating to Rs. 533.459 million. Had there been no revaluation on 
that date, the book value of operating fixed assets would have been lower by Rs. 2,553.340 million (2023: 
Rs. 2,573.245 million).

	
9.5 	 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the assets as at september 30, 2024 would have been 

as under:

	 Note	 2024	 2023
            Description		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Free hold land		    7,959,798 	  7,959,798  
	 Buildings on free hold land		    52,738,796 	  46,790,167  
	 Plant and machinery		    774,917,357 	  800,770,902  
			 
			     835,615,951 	  855,520,867  
 	
9.6 	 The forced sale value of free hold land, buildings on free hold land and plant and machinery is Rs. 1,469.004 

million, 218.017 million and 1,116.000 million, respectively.
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
9.7	  The depreciation charge for the year is as follows:

	 Operating fixed assets	 9.1	   108,854,750 	  110,813,711  
	 Right-of-use assets	 10	   3,369,142 	  3,273,272  
			    112,223,892 	  114,086,983

9.8 	 The depreciation charge for the year is as follows:

	 Cost of sales	 37	   105,162,888 	  108,639,490  
	 General and administrative expenses	 39	  3,691,862 	  2,174,220  
			     108,854,750 	  110,813,711

9.9 	 Plant and machinery includes an amount of Nil (2023: Rs. Nil) as stand by equipment / parts which have 
been capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the assets.

9.10 	 Fair value measurement (revalued property, plant and equipment)

9.10.1 	Fair value measurement of free hold land is based on the valuations carried out by an independent valuer 
M/s. Harvester Services (Private) Limited as at September 30,  2022 on the basis of market value.

9.10.2 	Fair value measurement of revalued land is based on assumptions considered to be level 2 inputs.

9.10.3 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Land

	 Fair value of land has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land in 
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the property. The 
most significant input in this valuation approach is price / rate per kanal in particular locality. This valuation 
is considered to be level 2 in fair value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation. 

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
10.	 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

	  Vehicles 	 10.1	  7,344,810 	  11,235,125 	
Agricultural land	 10.2	   6,493,730 	  8,855,086 

				      13,838,540 	  20,090,211  

10.1	 The following is the statement of right of use assets:			 

	 Vehicle			 

	 Year ended September 30, 2024			 
	 Net carrying value basis 		
	 Opening net book value		   11,235,125 	  14,848,919 
	 Addition during the year	 10.1.2	  3,976,400 	  37,590 
	 Transferred to operating fixed assets		   (6,858,929)	  (968,451)
	 Depreciation 		   (1,007,786)	  (2,682,933)
				      7,344,810 	  11,235,125  	

Gross carrying value basis  			 

	 Cost 			   17,644,280 	  19,386,220 
	 Addition during the year 		   3,976,400 	  37,590 
	 Transferred to operating fixed assets 		   (12,061,950)	  (1,779,530)
	 Accumulated depreciation 	 10.1.1	  (2,213,920)	  (6,409,155)
	 Net book value 		   7,344,810 	  11,235,125
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
10.1.1	 Accumulated depreciation 			 

	 Opening balance 		   6,409,155 	  4,537,301 
	 Charge for the year 		   1,007,786 	  2,682,933 
	 Transfer to fixed assets 		   (5,203,021)	  (811,079)

	 Closing balance 		   2,213,920 	  6,409,155

	  Depreciation rate % per annum 		  20%	 20%

10.1.2	 This represents vehicles obtained on finance lease from 
	  Bank Al Habib  Limited as further detailed in note 27.		

10.2	 Agricultural land			  				  
	 Year ended September 30			 
	 Net carrying value basis 			 
	 Opening net book value	 10.2.3	  8,855,086 	  -   
	 Addition during the year		   -   	  9,445,425 
	 Depreciation 		   (2,361,356)	  (590,339)

				     6,493,730 	  8,855,086   
	  Gross carrying value basis  			 
	  Cost 		   9,445,425 	  9,445,425 
	 Accumulated depreciation 	 10.2.1	  (2,951,695)	  (590,339)

	 Net book value 		   6,493,730 	  8,855,086

10.2.1	Accumulated depreciation			 
				  
	 Opening balance 		   590,339 	  -   
	 Charge for the year 		   2,361,356 	  590,339 

 	 Closing balance 		   2,951,695 	  590,339    
		
 	 Depreciation rate % per annum 		  25%	 25%

10.2.2	The depreciation charge for the year has been
	   allocated as follows:

	 General and administrative expenses 	 39 	  3,369,142 	  3,273,272 

10.2.3	This represents right of use of agriculture land against lease from various individuals for agriculture 
purposes to grow the sugarcane and seed experiments. 

11.	 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS			 
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 This comprises of:			 
	     Buildings on free hold land	                11.1 	 2,767,368 	 1,656,275 
	     Plant and machinery		  9,785,291	  -     
			 
			   12,552,659	  1,656,275  
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		  Building	 Plant and	 Total
			   machinery				  
		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
11.1 	 Movement of carrying amount			  				   			 
	 Year ended September 30, 2024			 
	     Opening balance	  1,656,275 	  -   	  1,656,275 
	     Additions (at cost)	  11,485,780 	  9,785,291 	  21,271,071 
	     Transferred to operating fixed assets	  (10,374,687)	  -   	  (10,374,687)

	     Closing balance	  2,767,368 	  9,785,291 	  12,552,659 
			 
	 Year ended September 30, 2023			 
	    Opening balance	  4,318,237 	  -   	  4,318,237 
	     Additions (at cost)	  5,509,693 	  -   	  5,509,693 
	     Transferred to operating fixed assets	  (8,171,655)	  -   	  (8,171,655)

	     Closing balance	  1,656,275 	  -   	  1,656,275  

11.2	 Buildings on free hold land consists of weigh bridge, sugar godown store and new mills house shed and plant 
and machinery consists of ash wet scrubber new turbine which are still under construction and expected to 
be completed in next financial year.  

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
12.	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS			 

	 Long term deposits	 12.1	  630,184	  525,400 	

12.1	 Movement of carrying amount			 

	 Opening balance		   1,687,950 	  1,862,450 
	 Addition 		   779,184 	  -   
	 Adjusted during the year		   (1,311,550)	  (174,500)
	 Closing balance		   1,155,584 	  1,687,950 
	 Current portion shown under the current 	 18 	  (525,400)	  (1,162,550)

				     630,184 	  525,400  
		
12.2	 This comprises of security deposits with the bank in respect of leasing facility availed during the current 

and prior years.				  

13.	 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees		
		
	 Stores 	 13.1	  130,834,596 	  132,222,661 
	 Spare parts	 13.1	  90,440,299 	  72,144,062 

			    221,274,895 	  204,366,723 
	 Less: 			 
	 Provision for obsolete store and spare parts	 13.2	  (16,041,549)	  (16,041,549)

			    205,233,346 	  188,325,174 
	 Loose tools		   2,570,476 	  1,620,028 

			    207,803,822 	  189,945,202   	
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13 .1	 Stores and spare parts also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not distinguishable 
at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spare parts consumption resulting in capital expenditure 
are capitalized in cost of respective assets.			   	

	 Note	 2024	 2024
		  Rupees	 Rupees

13.2	 Movement of provision for obsolete stores and spares			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   16,041,549 	  16,041,549 
	 Provision made		   -   	  -   

	 Closing balance		   16,041,549 	  16,041,549 
	
14.	 STOCK IN TRADE			 

	    Work in process			 
		   - Sugar		    10,314,607 	  9,404,221  
		   - Molasses		    1,410,808 	  2,935,690 

			   37	   11,725,415 	  12,339,911 

	 Finished goods			 
		   - Sugar	 14.1&14.2	   1,926,348,367 	  714,322,740  
		   - Molasses		    4,559,100 	  59,470    

				      1,942,632,882 	  726,722,121  

14.1 	 Stock-in-trade up to a maximum amount of Rs. 1,851.301 million (2023: Rs. Nil) are under hypothecation of 
commercial banks as security for short term borrowings.

14.2	 These include provision for write down of finished goods inventory to net realizable value amounting to Rs. 
102.960 million (2023: Rs. 0.980 million).

15.	 TRADE DEBTS			 
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees		
           Unsecured			 
	 Considered good 		  3,362,467	  -    

				    3,362,467	  -   
	 Less: Allowance for expected credit losses		  -  	  - 
				    3,362,467	  -  

15.1 	 This represents amount receivable from Malmo Bakers
	 and Sweets and Jalal Sons against sale of sugar.			 
		
16.	 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

	 At fair value through profit or loss - Mutual funds			 
	 BAHL Asset Management Limited			 
	 BAHL Islamic Money Market Fund	 16.1 	  306,400 	  -   	
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees	
16.1 	  Bank Alhabib Money Market Fund			 

	 Opening		   -   	  -   
	 Acquired during the year		   600,000,000 	  -   
	 Bonus / dividend		   5,752,300 	  -   
	 Redeemed during the year		   (605,445,900)	  -   
	 Closing		   306,400 	  -   

17.	 LOANS AND ADVANCES			 
				  
	 Advances - (Unsecured - considered good)			 
	   To employees	 17.1	   4,051,004  	   2,902,815  
	 Advance against supplies and services (Unsecured)			 
	   Considered good			 
	 To cane growers	 17.2 	   322,701,342  	   295,092,221
	 To store purchasers	 17.3 	   120,175,788  	   19,300,146  

				      446,928,134  	   317,295,182   

17.1	 This represents advances given to employees against salary and expenses. These advances are provided 
for general purposes in accordance with the terms of their employment, which are not past due. These 
advances are unsecured, interest free and receivable on demand.				  
			 

17.2 	 This represents advances to various sugar cane growers in the form of fertilizers, seeds and pesticides. 
These advances are unsecured, interest free and will be adjusted in sugar cane payment.			 
			 

17.3 	 This represents advances to vendors and service providers and are settled as and when the items are 
received and services are rendered.  

	
17.4 	 Financial assets under this caption are advances which are trivial for the decision making of users of the 

financial statements hence no impact on measurement has been considered.
			 
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
18.	 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS			 

	 Prepaid insurance		  272,885 	 1,435,035 	  
	 Current portion of long term deposit	 12.1	 525,400 	 1,162,550 	    

				    798,285	  2,597,585 	      

19.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES			 

	 Considered good			 
	 Input sales tax 	 19.1 	  5,722,999 	  8,327,829 
	 Considered doubtful			 
	 Subsidy receivable on exports	 19.3 	  105,742,500 	  105,742,500 
	 Less: Allowance for expected credit losses	 19.2 	  (105,742,500)	  (105,742,500)
				     -   	  -   
				     5,722,999 	  8,327,829
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19.1 	 This represents sales tax against unclaimed invoices which have been claimed subsequent to the reporting date.

19.2 	 Movement of provision for  impairment allowance is as follows:

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Balance as at October 01,		   (105,742,500)	   (105,742,500)   
	 Provision made during the year		   -   	  -
	
	 Closing balance		   (105,742,500)	   (105,742,500)		

					   
19.3 	 This represents subsidy receivable from Government of Pakistan against export of sugar during the 

financial year 2015.  This is claimable under finance division’s notification No. 1(4) CF-C/2014-114 dated 
February 18, 2015 in terms of which Government of Pakistan has approved total cash subsidy at the rate of 
Rs. 10/- per kg to sugar mills on export of sugar, as per the terms and conditions mentioned therein. The 
Company considers that this amount may not be recoverable so that a provision is made for it.

 
19.4 	 The maximum amount due from Al-Moiz Industries Limited at the end of any month during the year was 

Rs. 4.590 million (2023: Rs. 4.561 million).  

19.5	 The maximum amount due from The Thal Industries Corporation Limited at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs. 9.145 million (2023: Rs. 7.371 million).  

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
20.	 TAXATION / LEVY - NET 			 

	 Opening balance	  	  36,941,661 	  32,487,650 
	 Advance income tax 		   109,401,106 	  60,956,930 
	 Less: Provision for taxation	 43 	  (73,144,097)	  (56,448,158)
	 Prior year adjustment		   49,047 	  (54,761)

	 Net asset / (liability) 		   73,247,717 	  36,941,661   

21.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 
			 
	 Cash in hand		   527,414 	  297,964 
	 Balances at banks			 
	 Deposit accounts	 21.1 	  1,143,872 	  29,632,783 
	 Current accounts	 21.3 	  82,117,910 	  86,880,162 

				     83,789,196 	  116,810,909

21.1	 Cash at bank in deposit accounts carries profit rate ranging from 14.00% to 20.70% (2023: 14.00% to 20.50%).  

21.2 	 Cash at bank in current accounts do not carry any interest or mark-up. There is no impact on measurement 
of bank balances due to implementation of IFRS 9.				  

21.3	 In some bank accounts, the Company has not conducted any transactions since long and the bank had 
marked these accounts as dormant.  				  
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22.	 SHARE CAPITAL

22.1	 Authorized share capital				 
					   
		      2024	 2023			   2024	 2023
	      Number of ordinary shares			   Rupees	 Rupees		
	 of Rs. 10/- each	
						    
	  70,000,000 	 70,000,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each	  700,000,000 	  700,000,000 
					   
22.2		 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
	      2024	 2023			   2024	 2023
	      Number of ordinary shares			   Rupees	 Rupees
	 of Rs. 10/- each				  
				    			 

	
	  6,400,000		  6,400,000 	 Fully paid in cash 	  64,000,000 	  64,000,000 
	  3,050,000 	  	 3,050,000 	 Fully paid bonus shares	  30,500,000 	  30,500,000
 
	  9,450,000 	  	 9,450,000 		   94,500,000 	  94,500,000

		  Number of	 Rupees
		  Shares
22.2.1	Movement of share capital is as follows: 			 
				  
	 Opening balance as at October 01, 2023 		   9,450,000 	  94,500,000 
	 Bonus shares issued during the year 		   -   	  - 
  
	 Closing balance as at September 30, 2024 		   9,450,000 	  94,500,000 

22.2.2	There is no shareholder agreement for voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and block voting.

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
23.	 DIRECTORS’ LOANS			 

	 Unsecured		
	 Directors		    2,635,700,000 	  2,635,700,000 
	 Chief Executive		   367,000,000 	  367,000,000 

				     3,002,700,000 	  3,002,700,000  

23.1	 This represents unsecured interest free long term loans from directors of the Company to meet the 
working capital and long term requirements.  These are payable on discretion of the Company and will be 
paid as and when convenient to the Company. This has been disclosed / classified in accordance with 
TR -32 “Directors’ Loan” clause 3.3 “Contractual Directors’ loan” that is interest free and repayable at the 
discretion of the Company, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Director’s 
loan is subordinated to financial institutions against banking facilities to the extent mentioned in respective 
financing agreements.			 
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		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees		
				  
24 .	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS - Restated			 
				  
	 Balance brought forward		   2,571,346,693 	  2,629,613,660 
	 Revaluation during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Less:			 
	 Transferred to equity in respect of incremental 			 
	   depreciation charged during the year - 			 
	   (net of deferred tax)		   54,073,589 	  58,266,967 
	 Related deferred tax liability during the year 			 
	   transferred to profit and loss account		   -   	

				     (54,073,589)	  (58,266,967)

				     2,517,273,104 	  2,571,346,693  

24.1	 The Company’s freehold land, buildings on freehold land, and plant and machinery have been revalued 
by M/s. Harvester Services (Private) Limited, an independent valuer not connected with the Company and 
approved by Pakistan Banks’ Association (PBA). The basis of revaluation for items of these fixed assets 
were as follows:				  

	 Freehold land

	 Fair market value of freehold land was assessed through inquiries to real estate agents and property 
dealers in near vicinity of freehold land. Different valuation methods and exercises were adopted according 
to experience, location and other usage of freehold land. Valuer had also considered all other relevant 
factors as well.				  

	 Buildings on freehold land

	 Construction specifications were noted for each building and structure and new construction rates were 
applied according to construction specifications for current replacement values. After determining current 
replacement values, depreciation was calculated to determine the current assessed market value.		

	 Plant and machinery

	 Suppliers and different sugar plant consultants in Pakistan and abroad were contacted to collect 
information regarding current prices of comparable sugar plant to determine current replacement value. 
Fair depreciation factor for each item was applied according to their physical condition, usage and 
maintenance.			 

24.2 	 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets would have 
been as follows:			 

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 Freehold land		   7,959,798 	  7,959,798 

	 Buildings on freehold land		  52,738,796	  46,790,167 	  

	 Plant and machinery		  774,917,357	  800,770,902 
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
25.	 LONG TERM LOAN

	   Secured - banking companies			 
	 Bank Al Habib Limited	 25.1 	  199,535,950 	  259,527,150 
	 Allied Bank Limited	 25.2 	  200,000,000 	  66,666,668 

				     399,535,950 	  326,193,818 

	 Current portion shown under current liabilities		   (259,991,200)	  (131,222,418)

				     139,544,750 	  194,971,400  

25.1	 This is a term loan obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited with approved limit of Rs. 300 million (2023: Rs. 
300 million). This facility is secured against the personal guarantees of directors,  corporate guarantees 
of M/s Al- Moiz Industries Limited (associated Company), subordination of directors loans and pari passu 
charge over present and future fixed asset of the Company (land, building, plant and machinery) with 25% 
margin amounting to Rs. 667 million.

25.2	 This is revolving Agri-facility with approved limit of Rs. 200 million (2023: Rs. 200 million). This facility is 
secured against the personal guarantees of directors, corporate guarantees of M/s Al- Moiz Industries 
Limited (associated Company), subordination of directors loans and pari passu charge over present and 
future fixed asset of the Company (land, building, plant and machinery) with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 
267 million. As of September, 30, 2024, the Company’s current ratio is below 1:1, as required under the 
Bank’s benchmark, consequently, the management has reclassified remaining non-current portion of loan 
amounting to Rs. 66.667 million as current liability.

25.2	 These facilities caries markup ranging from 3 month KIBOR+1%.

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
26.	 LONG TERM DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA			 
				  
	 Secured-banking companies			 
	    National Bank of Pakistan		
	    (Islamic mode)	 26.1	   270,000,000  	  300,000,000 
 
				     270,000,000 	  300,000,000  
	   Current portion shown under current liabilities		    (60,000,000)	  (30,000,000)
   
				     210,000,000 	 270,000,000  

26.1	 This is a term loan obtained from National Bank of Pakistan- Aitemaad with approved limit of Rs. 300 million 
(2023: Rs. 300 million) and carries mark-up at the rate ranging from 6 months  KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum. 
This facility is secured against the personal guarantees of directors and first pari passu charge of Rs. 400 
million on present and future fixed asset of the Company with 25% margin to be registered with SECP 
including constructive equitable mortgage of land and hypothecation of plant and machinery of Company.



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 83

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
27.	 LEASE LIABILITIES			 

	 Secured - 			 
	     Against right-of-use assets			 
	     Lease liabilities	 27.1	  10,983,614 	  10,413,498 
	     Less: current portion shown under current liabilities		   (4,362,004)	  (3,200,445)

				     6,621,610 	  7,213,053	

27.1	 Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:			 

	 Opening balance as at October 01,		   10,413,498 	  11,698,208 
	 Add: recognized during the year 		   3,906,000 	  9,445,425 
	 Add: interest expense for the year		   1,577,896 	  1,708,665 
	 Less: payment made during the year		   (4,913,780)	  (12,438,800)
	 Closing balance		   10,983,614 	  10,413,498 
	 Less: current portion shown under current liabilities		   (4,362,004)	  (3,200,445)

				     6,621,610 	  7,213,053  
27.2	 Maturity analysis-contractual undiscounted cash flows

	 Less than one year		   6,245,054 	  3,935,917 
	 One to five year		   6,389,136 	  7,878,540 
	 Total undiscounted lease liability		   12,634,190 	  11,814,457 
	 Less: future finance cost		   (1,650,576)	  (1,400,959)

	 Total undiscounted lease liability		   10,983,614 	  10,413,498   

27.3	 When measuring lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing 
rate ranges from 17.01% to 24.25% per annum (2023: 17.02% to 23.52% per annum).

27.4	 The lease facility has been obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited. The assets is owned by the Bank. The 
above liabilities were obligations under leases with bank for lease of vehicles. This also includes agriculture 
land obtained on long term lease.

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
28.	 DEFERRED LIABILITIES			 
				  
 	   Deferred taxation - restated 	 28.1	  - 	  - 
 	   Provision for gratuity	 28.2	   25,281,610 	  17,703,025  

				     25,281,610 	  17,703,025 	

28.1	 The deferred tax liability has been reversed in term of light of guidance under IAS 37/IFRIC 21 - IAS 12.

28.2 	 Provision for gratuity			 

28.2.1	 General description			 

	 The scheme provides for termination benefits for all its permanent employees who qualify for the scheme. 
The defined benefit payable to each employee at the end of his service comprises of total number of years 
of his service multiplied by last drawn basic salary. The Gratuity scheme is a un-funded arrangement. 
There is no minimum funding requirement for gratuity benefit scheme. The gratuity benefit scheme is a 
defined benefit scheme.				  

	
	 Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent approved valuer M/s TRT 

Associates as at September 30, 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit method.			 
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	 The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:				  
		

	 The main risk of gratuity benefit scheme is that the accrued benefits may not be paid when they fall due. 
The gratuity benefit liability reflected in the Company’s accounts provides a reasonable security of the 
accrued rights because it is likely that the accrued gratuity benefits could be considered as high priority 
debt in case of insolvency of the sponsor.					   
	

	 Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the 
Company has assumed.  The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the 
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase 
the liability and vice versa.					   
				  

	 Discount rate fluctuation - The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount 
rate determined by reference to the market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate 
bonds, or where there is no deep market in such bonds, by reference to market yields on government 
bonds. Currencies and terms of bond yields used must be consistent with the currency and estimated 
term of the post-employment benefit obligations being discounted. A decrease in bond interest rates will 
increase the liability, and vice versa.					   
		

	 Demographic Risks: Mortality Risk - The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by 
reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants during employment. An improvement in 
the mortality rates of the participants may increase/decrease the liability and vice versa depending on the 
age-service distribution of the exiting employees.					   
		

	 Withdrawal Risk - The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the best 
estimate of the withdrawal rate / attrition rate of plan participants. As such, an increase in the withdrawal 
rate may increase/decrease the liability and vice versa depending on the age-service distribution of the 
exiting employees.				  
	

		  2024	 2023
		  Percentage	 Percentage
		                                    Per annum
28.2.2	 Significant actuarial assumptions		    	   
			     	
	 Following are significant actuarial assumptions used 
	 in the valuation:			 
				  
	 Discount rate		  12.00%	  16.75%  
	 Expected rate of increase in salary		  11.00%	  15.75%  
	 Expected average remaining working life time of employees		   8 years 	  8 years 		

		
		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
28.2.3	 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan			 
				  
	 Present value of obligation		
	       Liability recognized in balance sheet		  25,281,610	  17,703,025  	

	



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 85

	 Note	 2024	 2023         
		  Rupees	 Rupees
28.2.4	 Movement of the liability recognized in the 
	    statement of financial position			 
				  
	 Opening net liability		   17,703,025 	  11,541,454 
	 Charge for the year	 28.2.6	  14,771,634 	  7,586,305 
	 Remeasurement chargeable to other
	  comprehensive income 	 28.2.9	  3,179,817 	  919,510 
	 Benefits paid during the year		   (10 ,372,866)	  (2,344,244)

	 Closing net liability		   25,281,610 	  17,703,025  

28.2.5	 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations 			 
				  
	 Present value of obligation at the start of the year		   17,703,025 	  11,541,454 
   	 Current service cost		   6,573,449 	  6,186,445 
	 Past service cost		   6,101,656 	  -   
	 Interest cost		   2,096,529 	  1,399,860 
	 Remeasurements:			 
	   Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumption		   3,179,817 	  919,510 
	   Benefit paid during the year		   (10,372,866)	  (2,344,244)

	   Closing present value of defined benefit obligations 		   25,281,610 	  17,703,025  	
			 

28.2.6	 Charge for the year			 
				  
	 Current service cost		   6,573,449 	  6,186,445 
	 Past service cost		   6,101,656 	  -   
	 Interest cost		   2,096,529 	  1,399,860 

	 Charge for the year		   14,771,634 	  7,586,305 

28.2.7	 Allocation of charge for the year			 
				  
	 Cost of sales		   10,340,144 	  4,584,123 
	 Selling and distribution expenses		   295,432 	  100,000 
	 General and administrative expenses		   4,136,058 	  2,902,182 

				     14,771,634 	  7,586,305

28.2.8	 The expected charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending September 30, 2025 will be Rs. 
7.389 million.			 

				  
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
28.2.9	 Total remeasurement charge in other comprehensive income			 
				  
	 Remeasurement of plan obligation			 
	    Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in 			 
	        demographic assumption		   -   	  -   
	    Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in 			 
	        financial assumption		   3,179,817 	  919,510 
	    Experience adjustment		   -   	  -   
				     3,179,817 	  919,510 



86

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
28.2.10 Sensitivity analysis			 

	 The impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit
	 obligation is as follows:				  

	 Discount rate + 100 bps		   23,347,429 	  16,348,647 
	 Discount rate - 100 bps		   27,376,630 	  19,170,028 
	 Salary increase + 100 bps		   27,376,025 	  19,169,604 
	 Salary increase - 100 bps		   23,347,143 	  16,348,447  

28.2.11	 Maturity profile			 

	 Time in year		
	         	 1		   4,825,611 	  2,628,101 
		  2		   6,139,057 	  3,374,992 
		  3		   7,301,474 	  4,164,217 
		  4		   8,982,429 	  4,826,395 
		 5-11 onwards		   50,300,947 	  25,872,407 
	
28.2.12	The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years.

28.2.13	During the year, the comparative figures of maturity profile have been revised based on correct numbers. 
The change does not have any impact on these financial statements.

28.2.14	Year wise comparison is as follows:				  
	

		  2024	 2023	  2022	 2021	 2020   
				    Rupees			 

	
	 Present value of defined benefit obligation	 25,281,610	 17,703,025	  11,541,454 	  7,705,659 	  2,761,963 

	 Experience adjustment on obligation	 -	 -	  -   	  143,475 	  (151,708)		
				  

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
29.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 

	 Trade creditors		   143,043,983 	  114,171,800 
	 Accrued liabilities		   20,557,482 	  21,104,358 
	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 	 29.3	  -   	  8,308,468 
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund	 29.4	  -   	  1,991,090 
	 Taxes and duties payable		   5,264,135 	  2,040,782 
	 Sales tax payable		   28,315,881 	  64,732,244 
	 Other liabilities 		   187,873 	  762,782 

				     197,369,354 	  213,111,524  	
			 

29.1 	 As the reporting date there is no payable balance to related parties. The maximum amount due to Thal 
Industries Corporation Limited and Al-Moiz Industries Limited at the end of any month during the year was 
Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 2.008 million) and Nil (2023: Rs. 34.330 million), respectively.	
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29.2	 The trade creditors’ balances includes an amount of Rs. 14.107 million and accrued liabilities includes an 
mount of Rs. 9.136 million respectively, which are long outstanding at the reporting date and are adjustable 
against the payment to be made to the Sponsor Sellers as per agreement. However, due to un-availability 
of third party confirmation, on prudence basis these balance have not been adjusted and the Company will 
complete the due legal process before adjusting these balances. 

			 
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
29.3	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund			 

	 Balance as at October 01,		   8,308,468 	  2,723,310 
	 Interest 	 29.3.2	  834,655 	  607,434 
   	 Less: amount paid		   (9,142,110)	  -   
				     1,013 	  3,330,744 
	 Less: unallocated amount paid to Govt. treasury		   (1,013)	  -   
	 Current year’s allocation at 5%	 40 	  -   	  4,977,724 

				     -   	  8,308,468  	
			 

29.3.1	The Company retains the allocation of this fund for its business operations till the amounts are paid.

29.3.2	Interest on Workers’ profit (participation) fund has been provided at the rate of  22.31% (2023:22.31%).

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
29.4	 Workers’ Welfare Fund			 

	 Balance as at October 01,		   1,991,090 	  3,578,937 
	 Less: amount paid to fund		   (1,991,090)	  (3,578,937)
				    -   	  -   
	 Current year’s allocation at 2%		   -   	  1,991,090 

				    -   	  1,991,090 

30. 	 CONTRACT LIABILITIES			 

	 Unsecured			 
	 Opening balance as at October 01,		   408,485,470 	  73,494,312 
	 Advance received		   5,938,733,367 	  4,983,937,109 
	 Income recognized		   (6,105,442,829)	  (4,648,945,951)

	 Closing balance 		   241,776,008 	  408,485,470 

30.1	 During the year, the performance obligations under lying the opening contract liability of Rs. 408.485 million 
were satisfied in full. Accordingly, the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year. In addition, 
information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract 
liability of Rs. 241.776 million is not presented since the expected duration of all the contracts entered into 
with the customers is less than one year.
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
31. 	 DUE TO PATTOKI SUGAR MILLS LIMITED			 
				  
	 Unsecured:			 
	 Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (PSML)	 31.1 	   9,007,275  	   15,552,242  
				  
31.1	 Movement of amount due to Pattoki Sugar 
	 Mills Limited (PSML) is as follow:			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   15,552,242 	 16,656,242 
	 Add: adjustment made during the year		   (1,498,757)	 -   
	 Less: expenses paid on behalf of PSML		   (5,046,210)	  (1,104,000)

	 Closing balance		  9,007,275 	 15,552,242 		
		

31.2 	 This represents balance payable to M/s Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (PSML) - the ex holding company as 
settlement balance. During the year, the Company has paid legal expenses in respect of old cases and 
made the adjustment of balance payable to PSML.					   
	

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
32.	 SHORT TERM BORROWING			 
				  
	 Secured - banking companies					   

   Cash Finance (Conventional financing)	 32.1 	  1,851,297,154 	 -   
	 Short term Financing (STF)					   

   Bank Al Habib Limited	 32.2 	  200,000,000 	 100,000,000 
	 Running Finance 					   

   Bank Al Habib Limited	 32.3 	  7,753,566 	 -   

				    2,059,050,720 	 100,000,000 		
		

32.1 	 This represents cash finance facility under the conventional financing arrangement from various banks 
that carries mark-up at the rate ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1%  per annum (2023: 1 month 
KIBOR plus 0.75%  per annum) on utilized limits. This facility is secured against white refined sugar bags at 
22% margin, personal guarantees of the directors and subordination of loan from directors. 	

32.2 	 This represents the financing facility for procurement and supply of agricultural inputs to growers of the 
Company aggregated to Rs. 200 million (2023: Rs. 200 million). This facility carries the markup at the rate of 
relevant  KIBOR plus 1% per annum. This facility is secured against the personal guarantees of directors, 
corporate guarantees of M/s Al- Moiz Industries Limited (associated Company), subordination of directors 
loan and pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets of the Company.

	
32.3 	 During the year, the Company had availed a running finance facility from Bank Al Habib Limited aggregated 

to Rs. 50 million (2023: Rs. 50 million) and carries mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 0.75% (2023: 1 
month KIBOR plus 0.75%) on utilized limits. This facility was secured against all present and future current 
assets of the Company for Rs. 67 million and personal guarantees  of the directors.
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
33.	 MARK UP ACCRUED			 
				  
	 Long term financing from associated company		   264,084,254 	  264,084,254
	 Long term financing from banking companies		   37,403,118 	  32,305,172
	 Short term borrowings		   114,733,629 	  8,795,548
	 Mark-up on lease		   -   	  150,797

				     416,221,001 	  305,335,771	
	

34.	 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM  LIABILITIES			 
				  
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 	 27 	  4,362,004 	  3,200,445 
	 Long term loans	 25 	  259,991,200 	  131,222,418 
	 Long term diminishing musharka	 26 	  60,000,000 	  30,000,000 

				     324,353,204 	  164,422,863  

35.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 
				  
35.1	 Contingent liabilities			 
				  
a)	 The LTU-FBR has preferred a reference before Income Tax Appellate (ITAT) for the assessment year 1996 - 

1997 against the decision of CIT appeals. The department has also filed petition for leave to appeal before 
the honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan for the assessment year 1999 - 2000 and tax year 2006 against 
the order in the favor of the company by the honorable High Court of Sindh.  

	 In the opinion of the tax advisor  the ultimate appellate decision is likely to be in Company’s favour, hence 
no provision is made in these accounts as there will be no tax impact of the matter in view of brought 
forward tax losses. In view of the favorable decision of the higher appellate forums on the like issue in prior 
years the management is hopeful about favorable outcome in above matters. Hence no provision is made 
in these account as there will be no tax impact of the matter in view of brought forward losses. The figures 
are not quantifiable due to old cases.	

b)	 The Company has filed reference application before the Honorable High Court of Sindh against the 
decision of ITAT in respect of assessment year 2000 - 2001, the reference application is pending before the 
honorable High Court Sindh. The Company has also filed the appeal before the Commissioner of income 
tax appeals against addition made by the assessing officer for the assessment year 2002 - 2003 which is 
pending for adjudication. In view of the favorable decision of the higher appellate forums on the like issue 
in prior years the management is hopeful about favorable outcome in above matters. Hence no provision is 
made in these account as there will be no tax impact of the matter in view of brought forward losses. The 
figures are not quantifiable due to old cases.

	
c)	 The Company has filed an appeal before the Tribunal against the order of Commissioner Inland Revenue 

disallowing refund of further tax on the ground that the incidence of the tax has been passed on the 
consumers and the Company is not entitled to claim refund in terms of Section 3 (B) of the sales Tax Act, 
1990. The management of the Company is of the view that outcome of the suit would be in favour of the 
Company.	

d)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 3.825 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated November 03, 2017 
against the Company for adjustment of input tax. The Company being aggrieved filed input tax rectification 
application. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided 
against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 3.825 million (2023: Rs. 3.825 million).	
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e)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 2.528 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated November 07, 2018 
against the Company for adjustment of input tax for the period of January 2018. The Company being 
aggrieved filed input tax rectification application. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the 
proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 2.528 
million (2023: Rs. 2.528 million).

f)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 12.648 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated December 16, 
2018 against the Company for adjustment of input tax for the period of February 2018. The Company 
being aggrieved filed input tax rectification application. The Company expects a favorable outcome of 
the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 
12.648 million (2023: Rs. 12.648 million).	

g)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 9.894 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated December 20, 2018 
against the Company for adjustment of input tax for the period of March 2018. The Company being 
aggrieved filed input tax rectification application. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the 
proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 9.894 
million (2023: Rs. 9.894 million).

h)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 41.616 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated August 04, 2017 
against the Company on account of sales tax audit for the tax year 2014 and certain amounts were held 
recoverable. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A). CIR (A) remanded back the case 
for fresh adjudication. Thereafter in fresh proceedings an amount of Rs. 3.416 million has been established 
vide order dated March 28, 2019. This has also been challenged before CIR Appeals. The Company 
expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it 
may result in tax payable of Rs. 3.416 million (2023: Rs. 3.416 million).

i)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 10.137 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated November 12, 2018 
against the Company on account of inadmissible input tax adjustment for the period July 2016 to November 
2017. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A). CIR (A) remanded back the case for fresh 
adjudication. The case decided against the Company and an amount of Rs. 10.211 million has been paid 
to the Department under protest and also appeal has been filed against this order. The Company expects 
a favorable outcome of the proceedings.

j)	 As per SRO of 77(1) / 2013 dated February 07, 2013, the Federal Government allowed reduced rate@.0.5% 
FED on local sales of white crystalline sugar equivalent to the quantity actually exported by the sugar 
manufacturer as per quota allotted. Sales tax and Federal Excise returns for the tax periods from November 
2013 to June 2014 were analyzed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue and it was observed that registered 
person had declared local sales on which Company was required to charge and pay FED @ 8% in VAT 
mode under the provision of section 3 and 7 of the Federal Excise Act, 2005. The Commissioner Inland 
Revenue created a demand amounting to Rs. 65.084 million along with default surcharge and penalty of Rs. 
3.254 million on short payment of FED based on that Company charged and paid FED at the rate of 0.5% 
without fulfilling the conditions as mentioned in SRO 77(1) 2013. Being aggrieved with the order passed 
by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, the Company preferred appeal before the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue (Appeals-I), Karachi.

	 The CIR (A) vide order in appeal No. STA/91/LTU/2019/09 vacated order of Deputy Commissioner and 
passed order in favour of the Company. The department has filed an appeal against this order to Appellate 
Tribunal IR. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided 
against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs.  68.338 million.

k)	 As per SRO of 77(1) / 2013 dated February 07, 2013 read with the SRO 1072 (1) / 2013 dated December 
27, 2013, the Federal Government allowed reduced rate@.0.5% FED on local sales of white crystalline 
sugar equivalent to the quantity actually exported by the sugar manufacturer as per quota allotted by the 
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ECC in it meeting held on January 10, 2013. Sales tax and Federal Excise returns for the tax periods from 
February 2013 to October 2013 were analyzed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue and it was observed 
that registered person had declared local sales on which Company was required to charge and pay FED 
@ 8% in VAT mode under the provision of section 3 and 7 of the Federal Excise Act, 2005.  

	 The Commissioner Inland Revenue created a demand amounting to Rs. 15.393 million along with default 
surcharge and penalty of Rs. 0.769 million on short payment of FED based that Company charged and 
paid FED at the rate of 0.5% without fulfilling the conditions as mentioned in SRO 77(1) 2013. Being 
aggrieved with the order passed by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, the Company preferred 
appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I), Karachi. The CIR (A) vide order in appeal No. 
STA/90/LTU/2019/06 vacated order of Deputy Commissioner and passed order in favour of the Company.  
The department has filed an appeal against this order to Appellate Tribunal IR. The Company expects a 
favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result 
in tax payable of Rs.  16.163 million (2023: Rs. 16.163 million).

l)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 10.163 million has been created by DCIR against the Company on account of 
some discrepancies were observed in the sales tax returns for the period from July 2016 to November 
2017. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A). CIR (A) remanded back the case for 
fresh adjudication. Thereafter in fresh proceedings an amount of Rs. 10.163 million has been demanded 
by DCIR. This has also been challenged before CIR Appeals. The CIR (A) vide order in Appeal No. 
STA/40/LTU/2019/07 dated September 26, 2019 annulled order of DCIR. Being aggrieved with the order 
department has filed second appeal to Appellate Tribunal IR. The Company expects a favorable outcome 
of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 
10.163 million (2023: Rs. 10.163 million).

m)	 Sales tax Audit for Tax Year 2017, 2018 and 2019 u/s 25 of Sales Tax Act, 1990 were selected by 
Commissioner Income Tax through his discretionary powers vested under this section. The DCIR has 
requested information in this regard and the Company has obtained stay order from Honorable High Court 
of Sindh, Karachi.	

n)	 The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) initiated the inquiry against all the sugar mills due to price 
hike based on export of Sugar. CCP decided the case against the sugar mills and imposed penalty on all the 
sugar mills and Sugar Mills Association amounting to Rs. 44 billion. As per CCP decision maximum penalty 
of Rs. 8.512 million was imposed on the Company. According to majority of lawyers, the CCP decision was 
based on veto powers used by the chairman of committee which is bad in law and cannot hold in superior 
courts. The Company along with others sugar industries filed a petition against this decision in the higher 
courts. The Honorable Court has granted a stay to the Company against this penalty.

o)	 The Company  has received notice under section 254 of the Companies Act, 2017 and directors have also 
received a notice pursuant to section 111(b) of the Securities Act, 2015 which have been responded. The 
Company and directors are not expecting any further unpleasant correspondence in this regard.

p)	 The Company has obtained a stay against the notice received from EOBI, in which the EOBI is demanding 
to pay the EOBI contribution on the basis of Rs. 25,000/- instead of Rs. 13,000/-. The Company is confident 
to defend the case and considering no adverse effect on the Company financial statements.

35.2	 Commitments

a)	 The Company is committed as at the reporting date in respect of capital expenditure of Rs. Nil (2023: 150 
million).
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b)	 The amount of future lease rentals on vehicle contract and the period in which payments will become due 
are as follows:

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 Less than one year	 27.2	   6,245,054  	   3,935,917  
	 Between one and five years	 27.2	   6,389,136  	   7,878,540  

				      12,634,190  	   11,814,457

  
36.	 SALES			 

	 Set out below is the dis-aggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers.

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 Manufacturing - local			 
	   Sugar			 
	   Local		   5,933,803,858 	  4,302,367,649 
	   Export		   192,780,000 	  232,740,000 

				     6,126,583,858 	  4,535,107,649  
	 By products sales:			 
	   Molasses	 36.1 	  703,368,930 	  678,776,670 
	   Bagasse		   37,665,388 	  35,928,375 
	   V.F.Cake		   28,462,655 	  14,699,735 

				     769,496,973 	  729,404,780 
	 Less: sales tax/FED			 
	   Sugar 		   (975,656,521)	  (651,276,576)
	   Molasses		   (69,224,210)	  (62,371,160)
	   Bagasse		   (5,745,568)	  (5,569,623)
	   V.F.Cake		   (5,132,610)	  (2,155,848)

				     (1,055,758,909)	  (721,373,207)

				     5,840,321,922 	  4,543,139,222
36.1     Molasses:

	 Sale under 		
	 - DTRE (Duty and Tax Remission for Exporters) 		   249,565,774 	  270,000,000 
	 - Others   		   453,803,156 	  408,776,670 

				     703,368,930 	  678,776,670  
36.2    Geographical region:

	 Pakistan		   5,933,803,858 	  4,302,367,649 
	 Tajkistan / Singapore		   192,780,000 	  232,740,000 

				     6,126,583,858 	  4,535,107,649 

36.3     Timing of transfer of goods

	 Goods transferred to customers at a point in time		   6,126,583,858 	  4,535,107,649 

36.4 	 The sales includes an amount of Rs. 841.906 million (2023: Rs. 324.000 million) which has been made to 
an associated company, Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited on prevailing market rates.
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
37.	 COST OF SALES			 
	 Cane purchases and expenses thereon		   6,106,024,252 	  3,574,265,411 
	 Other overheads:			 
	 Stores, spares and consumables		   16,927,108 	  27,023,660 
	 Packing materials consumed		   52,074,032 	  39,003,164 
	 Chemicals consumed		   33,580,174 	  34,340,973 
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits 	 37.1 	  232,778,878 	  184,284,670 
	 Fuel and power		   32,418,330 	  28,172,040 
	 Repair and maintenance		   185,579,055 	  164,128,735 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 9.8	  105,162,888 	  108,639,490 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   16,049,758 	  13,451,733 
	 Fee and subscription		   355,610 	  90,000 
	 Insurance		   1,067,936 	  1,002,063 
	 Other factory overheads		   14,412,199 	  9,156,793 

				     690,405,968 	  609,293,321 
	 Work in process			 
	    Opening		   12,339,911 	  5,413,703 
	    Closing	 14 	  (11,725,415)	  (12,339,911)
				     614,496 	  (6,926,208)

	 Cost of goods manufactured		   6,797,044,716 	  4,176,632,524 
			 
	 Finished goods			 
	    Opening		   714,382,210 	  530,146,487 
	    Closing	 14 	  (1,930,907,467)	  (714,382,210)

				     (1,216,525,257)	  (184,235,723)

				     5,580,519,459 	  3,992,396,801  

37.1	 This amount includes Rs. 10.340 million (2023: Rs. 4.584 million) in respect of employees’ retirement benefits.

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
38.	 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 38.1 	  5,803,081 	  4,632,855 
	 Freight outward		   1,055,962 	  12,197,430 
	 Other selling expenses related to export		   936,603 	  1,198,348 
	 Stacking, restacking and carriage		   16,308,847 	  15,186,974 
	 Insurance		   2,366,766 	  1,131,182 
	 Commission on sale of sugar		   3,507,600 	  2,966,098 

				     29,978,859 	  37,312,887 	

38.1 	 This amount includes Rs. 0.295 million (2023: Rs. 0.100 million) in respect of employees’ retirement benefits.		
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
39.	 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 39.1	  105,964,839 	  88,695,022 
	 Director’s meeting fee		   690,000 	  370,000 
	 Traveling and conveyance		   316,259 	  409,898 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   485,517 	  322,500 
	 Telephone and postage		   1,178,451 	  1,021,149 
	 Printing and stationery		   2,885,357 	  2,189,460 
	 Fee and subscription		   5,647,276 	  6,853,485 
	 Insurance		   4,550,573 	  3,231,377 
	 Repair and maintenance		   5,038,768 	  4,510,494 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   10,140,914 	  5,800,047 
	 Entertainment		   3,601,993 	  2,677,457 
	 Legal and professional charges		   3,164,366 	  9,016,948 
	 Charity and donations	 39.2	  2,495,413 	  2,756,942 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 9.8	  3,691,862 	  2,174,220 
	 Depreciation on right-of-use assets	 10.1	  3,369,142 	  3,273,272 
	 Miscellaneous		   7,394,192 	  2,637,465 

				     160,614,922 	  135,939,736 
	
39.1	 This amount includes Rs. 4.136 million (2023: Rs. 2.902 million) in respect of employees’ retirement benefits.	

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
39.2	 Description			 

	 Iftar Dastarkhawan		    2,495,413  	  - 
	 Turkey and Syria Earthquake Victims		   - 	   500,000 		

			 

40.	 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 40.1 	  1,485,102 	  1,267,750 
	 Cost audit fee		   191,100 	  173,250 
	 Rent of land 	 40.2	  -   	  240,000 
	 Impairment of bank balances	 21.3 	  -   	  80,335 
	 Capacity regularization fee		   -   	  100,000,000 
	 Worker’s profit participation fund	 29.3	  -   	  4,977,724 
	 Worker’s welfare fund	 29.4	  -   	  1,991,090 

				     1,676,202 	  108,730,149 

40.1	 The breakup for audit fee is as follow;			 

	 Audit fee		   843,240 	  733,250 
	 Half yearly review fee		   330,000 	  334,000 
	 Review of code of corporate governance		   174,690 	  81,250 
	 Certifications		   36,500 	  52,500 
	 Out of pocket expenses		   100,672 	  66,750 

				     1,485,102 	  1,267,750 
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40.2 	 This rental agreements have been classified as short-term leases due to their duration being less than 12 
months or low value. The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases 
of its assets (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do 
not contain a purchase option). Accordingly, these have been considered operating or low value leases.

	
	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
41.	 OTHER INCOME			 

	 Income from financial assets			 
	       Profit on bank deposit		   35,348,106 	  27,140,289 
	       Dividend income		   6,767,503 	  -   

				     42,115,609 	  27,140,289 
	 Income from non-financial assets			 
	       Gain on sale of fixed assets		   98,214 	  7,772,448 
	       Gain on sale of store items		   1,391,406 	  609,007 
	       Exchange gain on export of Sugar		   7,938 	  19,106,189 
	       Margin charged on agri products	 41.1 	  46,304,683 	  43,763,513 
	       Sale of scrap		   49,761,876 	  57,975,973 
 	      Misc. Income		   50,000 	  -   
	       Liabilities no longer payable written back	 41.2 	  -   	  17,891,973 
				     97,614,117 	  147,119,103 

				     139,729,726 	  174,259,392 	

41.1 	 This represents rate difference / margin charged to cane growers on provision of fertilizers and seeds.			 
	

41.2 	 This represents accrued liability which was no more payable in the previous year.

	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
42.	 FINANCIAL CHARGES			 
	
	    Mark-up / interest on:			 
	       Short term financing		   635,180,790 	  237,607,584 
	       Long term loan from banks		   118,594,022 	  109,372,106 
	       Interest on worker’s profit participation fund		   834,655 	  607,434 
	       Lease liabilities		   1,577,896 	  1,708,665 

				     756,187,363 	  349,295,789 

	    Bank charges and commission		   1,346,326 	  1,137,585 

				     757,533,689 	  350,433,374 
43.	 LEVY
	
	 Minimum taxes	 43.1 	  73,144,097 	  56,448,158 

43.1 	 This represents minimum taxes paid under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 representing levy 
in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.		

43.2 	 As the tax charge represent minimum tax (turnover) under under section 113 of the income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate is not 
prepared and presented.		
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	 Note	 2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
44.	 TAXATION			 
				  
	    Current 
	    Prior year adjustments	 44.1	  (49,047)	 54,761   

	    			    (49,047)	 54,761   
	    Deferred tax 	 28 	  -	  -

				     (49,047)	   54,761 		
		

44.1	 This represents a difference between net taxation charged in the financial statements and the income tax 
return filed in the last year due to expenditure not taken into account.

			 
44.2	 Comparison of tax provision against tax assessments
			 
			   Excess/	 Tax	 Tax assessment /
	 Years		  (Short)	 provision	 tax return
				     (Rupees) 
	
	 2022-23		    41,334 	  56,448,158 	  56,406,824  
	 2021-22		    (46,761)	  48,838,233 	  48,884,994
	 2020-21		    -   	  48,022,480 	  48,022,480 
	 2019-20		   -   	  24,408,193 	  24,408,193

44.3	 Reconciliation of tax charge 
	
	 Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the 

profit and loss is as follows:

	 Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws		   73,095,050 	  56,502,919 
	 Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws,			 
	    representing income tax under IAS 12		   49,047 	  (54,761)
	 Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, 			 
	    representing levy in terms of requirements of 			 
	       IFRIC 21/IAS 37		   (73,144,097)	  (56,448,158)

	 Difference		   -   	  -  

44.4	 Minimum tax for tax year 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 of Rs. 47.191 million, Rs. 62.772 million, Rs. 1.849 
million and Rs. 2.512 million respectively was fully adjusted against the tax credits under section 65B. The 
Company has claimed tax credit at the rate of 10% for tax year 2019 based on the appeals filed by the 
general Industry in the Courts.

	
44.5	 As at September 30, 2024, as per the treatments adopted in tax returns filed that are based on the applicable 

tax laws and decisions of appellate authorities on similar matters, the provision in the financial statements 
for income tax is sufficient as there are strong grounds that the said treatments are likely to be accepted by 
the tax authorities.
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45.1	 Basis of relationship with the company				  
					   
	 In respect of associated companies and holding company incorporated inside Pakistan with whom the 

company had entered into transaction during the financial year along with basis of relationship is as follows:	

Name of related party
 Country of 

Incorporation/
origin

Relationship Basis of 
Association Shareholdings Basis of Association Shareholdings

2024 2023

Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) 
Limited

Pakistan Associated Common 
management

 Nil  Common management Nill

Al-Moiz Industries Limited Pakistan Associated Common 
management

 Nil  Common management  Nil 

Moiz Textile Limited Pakistan Associated Common 
management

 Nil  Common management  Nil 

The Thal Industries Corporation Limited Pakistan Associated Common 
management

 Nil  Common management  Nil 

Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan Pakistan Director Shareholding 29.1623%  Shareholding 29.1623%

Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan Pakistan Director Shareholding 28.0002%  Shareholding 28.0002%

Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan Pakistan Chief 
Executive

Shareholding 20.0002%  Shareholding 20.0002%

Mr. Nauman Khan Pakistan Director Shareholding 20.0002%  Shareholding 20.0002%

Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayun Pakistan Director Shareholding 0.0169%  Shareholding 0.0169%

Mr. Farid ul din Ahmed Pakistan Director Shareholding 0.0021%  Shareholding 0.0021%

Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan Pakistan Director Shareholding 0.0032%  Shareholding 0.0032%

45.2	 The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of 
“Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executive (note 50)”. There are no transactions with key 
management personnel other than under their terms of employment except otherwise stated.

45.3	 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity. The Company considers all members of its management team, 
including the Chief Executive Officer and the Directors to be key management personnel.		

46.	 (LOSS) / EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 			 

	 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:

		  2024	 2023
			   (Restated)

	 (Loss) / profit after taxation - (Rupees)	  	  (623,366,533)	  36,082,748    

	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares	  	  9,450,000 	  9,450,000  

	 (loss) / earning per share - (Rupees)		    (65.96)	  3.82    
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47.	 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

	 		                                          Liabilities		
		  Short & Long term	 Directors	 Lease	 Total
		  Loans and others	 contribution	 liabilities
			                                    (Rupees)			 
					   
	 Balance as at October 1, 2023	  722,742,216 	  3,002,700,000 	  10,413,498 	  3,735,855,714 

	 Contribution / borrowings obtained	  2,032,392,852 	  -   	  3,906,000 	  2,036,298,852 
	 Prior year adjustment	  3,451,602 	  -   	  70,400 	  3,522,002 
	 Repayment of financing	  (30,000,000)	  -   	  (3,406,284)	  (33,406,284)

		   2,005,844,454 	  -   	 570,116 	  2,006,414,570 

	 Balance as at September 30, 2024	  2,728,586,670 	  3,002,700,000 	 10,983,614 	 5,742,270,284  		
			 

47.1	 There is no movement in the dividend during the year, therefore no reconciliation has been prepared.
	
47.2	 There is no non cash transaction during the year (2023: Nil).
	
48.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
	
	 Financial risk management
	
	 The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
	
	   -  Credit risk
	   -  Liquidity risk
	   -  Market risk
	
	 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk 

management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk 
management policies.

	
48.1 	 Credit risk
	
	 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the counter 

party fails completely to perform as contracted and arise principally from trade debts, loans and advances, 
trade deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents 
the maximum credit exposure before any credit enhancements. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date is as follows:			 

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Long term  deposits		   630,184 	  525,400 
	 Trade debts 		   3,362,467 	  -   
	 Loans and advances 		   446,928,134 	  317,295,182 
	 Bank balances		   83,261,782 	  116,512,945 
	 Short term investment		   306,400 	  -   
	 Other receivables		   5,722,999 	  8,327,829 
	 Short term deposits and prepayments		   798,285 	  2,597,585 

				     534,182,567 	  434,333,527  	
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	 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference 
to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty. To manage exposure to credit risk 
in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer’s 
financial position, past experience and other factors. Credit terms are approved by the approval committee. 
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. There is no separate 
credit period defined.

	
	 Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business 

activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation 
to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company believes 
that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

	
	 The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geographic region is as 

follows:			 
		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 Export		   -   	  -   
	 Domestic		    3,362,467  	  - 

				      3,362,467  	 - 	
	 Trade receivables by geographical split is as follows: 					   

	
			   Sales		                             Trade debts (Rupees)	
		  LC	 Others	 Total          	              Outstanding balance	
			                                       (Rupees)		  2024	 2023
	 Country						    
	 Pakistan	  -   	  5,647,541,922 	  5,647,541,922 	  3,362,467 	  -   
	 Singapore	  -   	  192,780,000 	  192,780,000 	  -   	  -   
	 Total	  -   	  5,840,321,922 	  5,840,321,922 	  -   	  -   		

				  
	 The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by type of customer is as 

follows:
		  		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Dealers/industries		    3,362,467  	  - 
	 End-user customers		   -   	  -   
				     3,362,467  	  - 
	
	 The aging of trade receivable at the reporting date is:

	 Not past due		   -   	  -   
	 Past due 1-30 days		   -   	  -   
	 Past due 30-180 days		    3,362,467  	  - 
	 Past due more than 180 days		   -   	  -   

				      3,362,467  	  -   
			 
	 The company’s most significant customers are Popular Food Industries Private Limted (2023: Mehmood 

Ahmad) from whom the receivable was Rs. nil (2023: Nil ). During the year an amount of Rs. 841.905 million 
(2023: Rs. 324 million) of sales have been made to an associated company, Naubahar Bottling Company 
(Private) Limited on prevailing market rates which is also a significant customer of the Company.
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	 Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the 
Company believes that impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade debtors past due, accordingly 
appropriate impairment loss has been recorded in these financial statements.

	
	 No impairment charged during the year.
	
	 The Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:			 

			 
			                         Ratings		  2024	 2023
		  Rating	 Short	 Long	 Rupees	 Rupees
		  Agency	 Term	 Term
						    
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  -   	  4,640,092 
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  1,143,872 	  29,632,783 
	 Allied Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA	  10,653,963 	  21,067,448 
	 MCB Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A-1+	 AAA	  14,773,772 	  4,756,867 
	 MCB Islamic Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A	 A1	  409,699 	  409,720 
	 National Bank of Pakistan	 PACRA	 A-1+	 AAA	  672,179 	  -   
	 Habib Bank Limited	 JCR-VIS	 A-1+	 AAA	  8,410,809 	  14,871,969 
	 Bank Alfalah Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA	  12,588,812 	  8,315,392 
	 The Bank of Punjab	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA	  200,000 	  -   
	 Askari Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  357,913 	  433,768  

Soneri Bank Limited”	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA-	  13,688,363 	  3,781,840 
	 Meezan Bank Limited	 VIS	 A-1+	 AA+	  20,362,400 	  28,603,066  
	
	 Cash and bank balances

	 The Company held cash and cash equivalents amounting to Rs. 83.789 million (2023: Rs. 116.810 million). 
These cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions counterparties, which are 
rated A to AA+, based on PACRA ratings. Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on 
a 12 month expected loss basis and reflects short term maturities of the exposure. The Company considers 
its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external ratings of the counterparties. 12 
month probabilities of default are based on historical data supplied by PACRA rating agency for each credit 
rating. Loss given default (LGD) parameters generally reflect assumed recovery rates based on recovery 
rates assumed in Basel Guidelines for unsecured exposures.

	
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables
	
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables mainly comprise of advances to employees against salaries, 

receivables from related parties and deposits with government entities. The Company has assessed, 
based on historical experience and available securities, that the expected credit loss associated with 
these financial assets is trivial and therefore no impairment charge has been accounted for.

	
48.2	 Liquidity risk
	
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
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	 	 Carrying	 Contractual	 One to 	 One to 	 Two to
		  amount	 cash flow	 twelve months	 two years	 five years	

		                                       ---------------------	----------------------(Rupees)-------------------------------------------
	 2024
	 Financial liabilities					   
						    
	 Long term loan	  399,535,950 	  399,535,950 	  259,991,200 	  126,657,868 	  12,886,882 
	 Mark-up accrued	  416,221,001 	  416,221,001 	  416,221,001 	  -   	  -   
	 Lease liabilities	  10,983,614 	  12,634,190 	  6,245,054 	  4,794,568 	  1,594,568 
	 Due to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited	  9,007,275 	  9,007,275 	  9,007,275 	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables	  163,789,338 	  163,789,338 	  163,789,338 	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowing	  2,059,050,720 	  2,059,050,720 	  2,059,050,720 	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend	  255,930 	  255,930 	  255,930 	  -   	  -   
		   3,058,843,828 	  3,060,494,404 	  2,914,304,588 	  131,452,436 	  14,481,450  

	 2023				  
	 Financial liabilities					   
						    
	 Long term loan	  326,193,818 	  326,193,818 	  132,042,868 	  59,991,200 	  134,159,750 
	 Mark-up accrued	  305,335,771 	  305,335,771 	  305,335,771 	  -   	  -   
	 Lease liabilities	  10,413,498 	  11,814,457 	  3,935,917 	  4,684,530 	  3,194,010 
	 Due to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited	  15,552,242 	  15,552,242 	  15,552,242 	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables	  136,038,940 	  136,038,940 	  136,038,940 	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowing	  100,000,000 	  100,000,000 	  100,000,000 	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend	  255,930 	  255,930 	  255,930 	  -   	  -   
		   893,790,199 	  895,191,158 	  693,161,668 	  64,675,730 	  137,353,760  
48.3	 Market risk				  

	
	 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in 

market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, 
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities, and liquidity in the 
market. The company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.

	
a)	 Currency risk
	
	 The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, import of raw materials and stores and spares 

and export sales that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the 
Company, primarily in U.S. dollar. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
			 
	 Trade debts		   -   	  - 
	 Gross balance sheet exposure		   -   	  -   
	 Outstanding letters of credit		   -   	  - 

	 Net exposure		   -   	  -       

	 The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:			 
	

		                            Average rate	                        	            Reporting date rate

		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
					   
	 USD to PKR	   278.61  	   287.98  	   277.75  	   287.74   
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	 Sensitivity analysis
				  
	 At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other variables held 

constant, post tax profit for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below.			 
	

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 Effect on profit or loss				  
	 Loss		  -   	  -   
					   
	 The weakening of the PKR against US dollar would have had an equal but opposite impact on the post tax 

profits / loss.
			   	
b)	 Interest rate risk
				  
	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from long term 
loans and short term borrowings. These are benchmarked to variable rates which expose the Group to 
cash flow interest rate risk. At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest - bearing 
financial instruments is as follows:				  

		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		                          Effective rate	                                 Carrying amount	
	 Financial liabilities			   Rupees	 Rupees
					   
	 Variable rate instruments:				  
	 Long term loan	 22.51%	 20.28%	  399,535,950 	  326,193,818 
	 Short term borrowings	 22.36%	 19.52%	  2,059,050,720 	  100,000,000 
	 Lease liabilities	 24.25%	 23.52%	  10,983,614 	  10,413,498 
	 Long term diminishing musharka	 22.91%	 20.26%	  270,000,000 	  300,000,000 

				     2,739,570,284 	  736,607,316   
					   
	 Effective interest rates are also mentioned in the respective notes to the financial statements.

	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
			 
	 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) 

profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.		
	

		  100 bp	 100 bp
		  increase	 decrease
	 As at September 30, 2024			 
	 Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 		      (27,395,703)	  27,395,703      
				  
	 As at September 30, 2023			 
	 Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 		      (7,366,073)	  7,366,073      
				  
	 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on (loss) / profit for the year and 

assets / liabilities of the Company.
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	 Interest rate risk management

	 The Company manages these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant 
changes in gap position can be adjusted. The long and short term borrowing and loans and advances 
by the Company has variable rate pricing that is mostly dependent on Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate 
(“KIBOR”) as indicated in respective notes.

48.4	 Other price risk

	 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The 
Company is not exposed on any price risk. 

48.5	 Risk management strategy related to sugarcane supplies

	 The Company is exposed to the following risks relating to its sugarcane supplies.

	 The Company is subject to various laws and regulations in Pakistan. The Company has established 
environmental policies and procedures aimed at ensuring compliance with local environmental and other 
laws. Management performs regular reviews to identify environmental risks and to ensure that the systems 
in place are adequate to manage those risks.

	 Climate and other risks

	 Due to inherent nature of the agricultural products, it contains elements of significant risks and uncertainties 
which may adversely affect business and resultant profitability, including but not limited to the following:

	 - adverse weather conditions such as floods etc. affecting the quality and quantity of production; and
	 - potential insect, fungal and weed infestations resulting in crop failure and reduced yields.

	 The Company is principally dependent upon the Government’s measures for flood control. The Company 
provides to cane growers an effective preventive pesticide / insecticide / fungicide program, regularly 
monitors the crops for any infestations and takes immediate curative measures.

	 Supply and demand risk

	 The price of sugarcane is driven by consumer demand of sugar as well as Government’s intervention in 
setting of minimum / support price for the grower. Surplus production or bumper crop may result in a 
lower selling price hence affecting profitability of the Company adversely. The Company manages this risk 
by aligning its harvest volume to market supply and demand. Management performs regular industry trend 
analysis for projected harvest volume and analysis.

49.	 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market 
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique.

	 The different levels for fair value estimation used by the Company have been explained as follows;

	 -	 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level-1).

	 -	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level - 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) ( Level-2).

  	 -	 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable 
inputs) (Level-3).  
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	 There were no financial instruments held by the Company which are measured at fair value as of  September 
30, 2024 and September 30, 2023.

	 Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during 
which the changes have occurred. However, there were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy 
during the year.

	
	 The Company has valued its some of fixed assets at fair value and classified under Property, Plant and 

Equipment. The carrying value and level of fair value of these non - financial assets have been disclosed in 
the relevant note to the financial statements.  

	
	 The following is the categorization of non-financial assets measured at fair value as at September 30, 2024 

and September 30, 2023. 

			                          2024				 
		  Level 1	  Level 2 	 Level 3	 Total
			                             Rupees				 
							    
	 Assets: 						   
	 Free hold land	  -   	   1,728,240,000  	  -   	   1,728,240,000
	 Buildings	  -   	   258,994,084	  -   	   258,994,084  
	 Plant and machinery	  -   	   1,370,184,699  	  -   	   1,370,184,699  		

					   
			                          2023				 
		  Level 1	  Level 2 	 Level 3	 Total
			                             Rupees				 
							    
	 Assets: 						   
	 Free hold land	  -   	   1,728,240,000  	  -   	   1,728,240,000  
	 Buildings	  -   	   276,304,880  	  -   	   276,304,880  
	 Plant and machinery	  -   	   1,427,965,056  	  -   	   1,427,965,056  		

			 
	 There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 and Levels 2 and 3 during the year and there were no 

changes in valuation techniques during the periods.
				  
50.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES			 

	
	 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including all 

benefits, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

		                            Chief Executive	                                  Directors		                         Executives	
		  2024	 2023	  2024 	 2023	 2024	 2023
			                ------------------------  (Rupees)  ------------------------			   	

	
							     
	 Managerial remuneration	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  50,246,708 	  38,595,938 
	 House rent allowance	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  180,000 	  -   
	 Utility expenses	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  4,272,000 	  1,071,819 
	 Bonus (performance)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3,927,112 	  2,024,705 
	 Reimbursable expenses	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Gratuity	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  391,686 
	 Meeting fee	  60,000 	  20,000 	  630,000 	  350,000 	  -   	  -   

		   60,000 	  20,000 	  630,000 	  350,000 	  58,625,820 	  42,084,148 

	 Number of persons	 1	 1	 6	 6	 29	 14 
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50.1	 The Company also provides the Executives with Company maintained house. Additionally the Executives 
were provided free use of Cellular phone and company maintained cars in accordance with their terms of 
employment.			 

50.2	 The Chief executive and directors of the company have waived their rights to receive meeting fee except 
which is mentioned above. No remuneration have been paid to executive / non executive directors of the 
Company.

51.	 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENTS
	
	 As at the reporting date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed 

their carrying amounts, unless otherwise stated in financial statements.

		  2024	 2023
		  Number	 Number
52.	 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION  			 
				  
	 Approved / installed crushing capacity (TCD)		   10,000 	  10,000 
	 Actual crushing (Metric tons)		   524,174.10 	  455,913.61 
	 Sugar production from cane (Metric tons)		   52,798.40 	  45,338.90 
	 Recovery of sugar cane (percentage)		  10.068%	 9.956%

53.	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

	 Number of employees at September 30,		
	 Permanent		
	 Head office		  4	 5
	 Factory		  82	 82
	 Contractual / temporary /daily wages		
	 Head office		  2	 2
	 Factory		  356	 335
	 Average number of employees during the year		
	 Permanent		
	 Head office		  5	 5
	 Factory		  85	 88
	 Contractual / temporary /daily wages		
	 Head office		  2	 2
	 Factory		  467	 450

54	 .	 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT			 
				  
	 The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return 
on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders’ equity. The 
Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes 
to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to 
externally imposed capital requirements.  

	
	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:  
	
	 (i)     	 to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
	 (ii)    	 to provide an adequate return to shareholders..
	



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 107

	 The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

	
	 The management at all times seeks to earn returns higher than its weighted average cost of capital, by 

increasing efficiencies in operations, so as to increase profitability.

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 The proportion of debt to equity at the year end was:			 
				  
	 Total Borrowings 		   5,532,270,284 	  3,469,307,316 
	 Less: Balances with banks 		  (83,789,198)	  (116,810,909)

	 Net debt		  5,448,481,086 	  3,352,496,407 
	 Total equity - including surplus on fixed asset		   2,589,480,264 	  3,216,026,614 

	 Total capital		  8,037,961,350 	  6,568,523,021 

	 Gearing ratio		  68%	 51%	
			 

	 In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lenders of  short term finances and long term loans (as 
referred to in note 23 and 25 to these financial statements), the Company is required to comply with certain 
financial covenants in respect of capital requirements which the Company has compiled with throughout 
the reporting period except those disclosed in note 25.3.

	
55.	 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
	
	 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and over sight of the Company’s risk 

management framework. The executive management team is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company’s risk management policies. The team regularly meets and any changes and compliance 
issues are reported to the Board of Directors through the audit committee. The audit committee oversees 
compliance by management with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews 
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

56.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY’S 
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

	
	 All other significant transactions and events that have affected the Company’s financial position and 

performance during the year have been adequately disclosed in the notes to these financial statements..
	  
57 .   	 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
	
	 There are no significant reportable events after the reporting date.
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58.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
	

Note

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial 
assets at 

amvortized 
cost

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortized 

cost

Total Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Total

	 On-Balance sheet financial instruments								      
	 As at September 30, 2024								      
	 Financial assets								      
	 At amortised cost								      
	 Long term deposits	 12 	  630,184 	  -   	  630,184 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade debts	 15 	  3,362,467 	  -   	  3,362,467 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Loans and advances	 17 	  4,051,004 	  -   	  4,051,004 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Cash and bank 	 21 	  83,789,198 	  -   	  83,789,198 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

			    91,832,853 	  -   	  91,832,853 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -       
	
	 Financial liabilities at amortised cost								      
	 Long term loans	 25 	  -   	  399,535,950 	  399,535,950 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Lease liabilities	 27 	  -   	  10,983,614 	  10,983,614 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables 	 29 	  -   	  163,789,338 	  163,789,338 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend		   -   	  255,930 	  255,930 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Due to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited	 31 	  -   	  9,007,275 	  9,007,275 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowings	 32 	  -   	 2,059,050,720 	 2,059,050,720 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Mark-up accrued	 33 	  -   	  416,221,001 	  416,221,001 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

			    -   	 3,058,843,828 	 3,058,843,828 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -      
	
	 On-Balance sheet financial instruments								      
	 As at September 30, 2023								      
	 Financial assets at amortised cost								      
	 Long-term deposits	 12 	  525,400 	  -   	  525,400 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade debts - net of provisions	 15 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Loans and advances 	 17 	  2,902,815 	  -   	  2,902,815 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Cash and bank balances 	 21 	  116,810,909 	  -   	 116,810,909 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

			    120,239,124 	  -   	 120,239,124 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -    
	
	 Financial liabilities at amortised cost								      
	 Long term loans	 25 	  -   	  326,193,818 	  326,193,818 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Lease liabilities	 27 	  -   	  10,413,498 	  10,413,498 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables 	 29 	  -   	  136,038,940 	  136,038,940 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend		   -   	  255,930 	  255,930 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Due to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited	 31 	  -   	  15,552,242 	  15,552,242 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowing	 32 	  -   	  100,000,000 	  100,000,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Mark-up accrued	 33 	  -   	  305,335,771 	  305,335,771 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

			    -   	  893,790,199 	  893,790,199 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -       

58.1	 The Company has valued certain fixed assets at fair value and classified under property, plant and 
equipment. The carrying value and level of fair value of these non - financial assets have been disclosed in 
the relevant note to the financial statements.  	

58.2	 Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non performance by these 
counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.	

59.  	 SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS	
	 Due to seasonal nature of sugar business, operating results of the Company are expected to fluctuate in 

the second half of the year. The sugarcane crushing season normally starts from November and lasts till 
April each year.
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60.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS	
	 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segments..	
	 Sugar Sales represents 88.84% (2023 : 85.48%) of the total sales of the Company.		
	 The major sale of the Company relates to the customers in Pakistan.	
	 All non - current assets of the company as at September 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.	
	 No sale accounted for 10% or more of total sales was made to any customer during the year, except 

Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited,  which constitute of 14.10% of total sugar sales (2023: 
Crystalline Chemical (Pvt) Limited, which constitute of 11.30%).  

61.	 SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE	
	 Following information has been disclosed with the reference to disclousre requirements of fourth schedule 

of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to all shares Islamic Index.

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 Statement of financial position -Financing obtained as per
	 Islamic mode:			  	
	 Long term diminishing musharka		  210,000,000 	 270,000,000 
	 Markup accrued:
	 Long term diminishing musharka		  20,268,001	 23,734,850

	 Relationships with banks having islamic window	
	 Bank Name 	 Region 		 Nature of transactiom
	 National Bank of Pakistan 	 Pakistan	             Long term diminishing musharka

62.	 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX	
	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purposes of 

comparison and for better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has been made during the 
year except as follows for better presentation;				   	

	 Reclassified from:	 Reclassified to:	 Rupees		
	 Statement of financial position			 

Tax refund due from government 	 Taxation / Levy -net	 41,665,004 	
	 Taxation - net	 Taxation / Levy -net	 4,723,343 
	 Statement of profit or loss			 

Taxation expense	 Levy	 56,448,158 	
63.	 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE	
	 These financial statements were authorized for issue on December 24, 2024 by the Board of Directors of 

the Company.	
64.	 GENERAL	
	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless stated otherwise.

	CHIEFE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Proxy Form
        No. of Shares	 Folio No./CDC Participant ID       

I/We ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

of___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Being member of BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint 

Mr./Miss/Mrs. ______________________________________________________________________________________________

of failing him/her ________________________________________________________________________________________

being a member of the company a my/our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/us and on my/or behalf, at the 
46th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held Registered Office, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore on Tuesday, the 28th 
January, 2025 at 3.00 p.m. and every adjournment thereof:

As witness my hand this ______________________ day of ___________________________________ 2025

Signed by the said _______________________________ of ______________________________________

1.     Witness’s Signature		  Member’s Signature
Name: ______________________________

CNIC No. ___________________________

Address: ____________________________

2.     Witness’s Signature		
Name: ______________________________

CNIC No. ___________________________

Address: ____________________________

Date _____________________

Place ____________________

Notes: ___________________

1.	 This form of  proxy, in order to be effected must be deposited duly completed at the registered office 2-D-1, 
Gulberg III, Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

2.	 A Proxy must be  a member of the company.

3.	 Signature should agree with the specimen registered with the company.

4.	 CDC shareholder’s entitled to attend and vote at this meeting must bring with them their Computerized 
National Identity Card / passport in original to provide his/her identity.

Revenue Stamp
 Rs. 50/-



112



IF UNDELIVERED, PLEASE RETURN TO

BABA FARID
SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
2-D-1, GULBERG III, LAHORE


